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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

·2· ·November 20, 2024, at 621 Woodland Square Loop

·3· ·Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:31 p.m., the

·4· ·following Monthly Meeting of the Washington State

·5· ·Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

·6· ·wit:

·7

·8· · · · · · · · · · · ·<<<<<< >>>>>>

·9

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Good afternoon.· This

11· ·is Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site

12· ·Evaluation Council, calling our November meeting to

13· ·order.

14· · · ·Ms. Grantham, will you call the roll.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Certainly, Chair

16· ·Drew.

17· · · ·Department of Commerce.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Elizabeth Osborne,

19· ·present.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of

21· ·Ecology.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Eli Levitt, present.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of Fish

24· ·and Wildlife.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LIVINGSTON:· Mike Livingston,



·1· ·present.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of

·3· ·Natural Resources.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. YOUNG:· Lenny Young, present.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Utilities &

·6· ·Transportation Commission.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster,

·8· ·present.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· For local government

10· ·and optional State agencies:· For the Horse Heaven

11· ·project:· Benton County, Ed Brost.

12· · · ·I believe I saw Mr. Brost's phone number in the

13· ·chat.

14· · · ·Okay.· Wautoma Solar:· For Benton County, Dave

15· ·Sharp.

16· · · ·Washington State Department of Transportation,

17· ·Paul Gonseth.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GONSETH:· Paul Gonseth,

19· ·present.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Hop Hill Solar:

21· ·Benton County, Paul Krupin.

22· · · ·Carriger Solar:· Klickitat County, Matt Chiles.

23· · · ·Wallula Gap --

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CHILES:· Matt --

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· -- project:· For



·1· ·Bent- -- oh.· Is that Matt Chiles?

·2· · · ·Mr. Chiles, was that you?

·3· · · ·Hearing none.· I will move on.

·4· · · ·Wallula Gap:· For Benton County, Adam Fyall.

·5· · · ·And then for Goldeneye BESS:· For Skagit County,

·6· ·Bobby [sic] Eckroth.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. ECKROTH:· Robby Eckroth,

·8· ·present.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Thank you.

10· · · ·Assistant attorney generals.· Jon Thompson.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· Present.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Zack Packer.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. PACKER:· Present.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· And I know that we

15· ·have a new assistant attorney general in.· There is a

16· ·Talia, but I do not know how to pronounce your last

17· ·name.

18· · · ·Talia, are you present?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. THOMPSON:· She is not present.

20· ·Talia Thuet.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· "Thuet."· Perfect.

22· ·Thank you.

23· · · ·Administrative law judges.· Adam Torem.

24· · · ·Laura Bradley.

25· · · ·Dan Gerard.



·1· · · ·Or Travis Dupree.

·2· · · ·For Council staff, I will call those anticipated

·3· ·to speak today.

·4· · · ·Sonia Bumpus.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BUMPUS:· Present.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Ami Hafkemeyer.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Present.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Amy Moon.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Amy Moon, present.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Sara Randolph.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Present.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Lance Caputo.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CAPUTO:· Present.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· John Barnes.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BARNES:· Present.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Joanne Snarski.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Present.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· And Zia Ahmed.

19· · · ·Operational updates.· Kittitas Valley wind

20· ·project.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CASEDAY:· Jarred Caseday,

22· ·present.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Wild Horse Wind

24· ·Power Project.

25· · · ·Grays Harbor Energy Center.



·1· · · ·Chehalis Generation Facility.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. SMITH:· Jeremy Smith, present.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Columbia Generating

·4· ·Station.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. MEHINAGIC:· Denis Mehinagic,

·6· ·present.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Columbia Solar.

·8· · · ·And Goose Prairie Solar.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CRIST:· Jacob Crist, present.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· And do we have

11· ·anyone present for the counsel for the environment?

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. REYNEVELD:· Sarah Reyneveld and

13· ·Yuriy Korol are present.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Thank you.

15· · · ·Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.· Thank

16· ·you.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Would you call the

18· ·names of the Council members that we did not hear

19· ·from.· I think a couple of them are there online.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Will do.

21· · · ·So I will circle back over to Wautoma Solar:· For

22· ·Benton County, Dave Sharp.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. SHARP:· Dave Sharp just joined.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Thank you,

25· ·Mr. Sharp.



·1· · · ·Hop Hill Solar:· For Benton County, Paul Krupin.

·2· · · ·And then for Wallula Gap:· For Benton County,

·3· ·Adam Fyall.

·4· · · ·And I did mark Ed Brost present, but I want to

·5· ·make sure, if he is unmuted, for Benton County for

·6· ·Horse Heaven.

·7· · · ·That is everyone, Chair.

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CUSHING:· This --

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Go ahead.· Somebody...

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CUSHING:· Apologies.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BROST:· Yeah, this is --

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CUSHING:· Thomas Cushing --

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BROST:· -- Ed Brost.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CUSHING:· -- present for --

16· ·Thomas Cushing present for Columbia Solar.  I

17· ·apologize.· My computer restarted in the middle of

18· ·roll.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Understood.· Thank

20· ·you.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CUSHING:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you, all.· Yes,

23· ·we've had a little bit of weather in our state,

24· ·weather all the time, so appreciate everybody being

25· ·online who can be today.



·1· · · ·You have the proposed agenda in front of you.

·2· ·Council members, is there a motion to adopt the

·3· ·proposed agenda?

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. YOUNG:· Lenny Young.· So moved.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster.

·6· ·Second.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

·8· · · ·Any discussion?

·9· · · ·All those in favor of adopting the agenda, say

10· ·"aye."

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

13· · · ·The agenda's adopted.

14· · · ·Moving on to the meeting minutes.· We have the

15· ·October 16th monthly meeting minutes.

16· · · ·Is there a motion to approve the monthly meeting

17· ·minutes?

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LIVINGSTON:· Mike Livingston.

19· ·So moved.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Is Michael --

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Elizabeth --

22· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· -- Living- --

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· -- Osborne.

24· ·(Unintelligible.)

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Michael Livingston



·1· ·moved it.· Elizabeth Osborne, second.

·2· · · ·Okay.· I did not find corrections to the October

·3· ·meeting minutes.

·4· · · ·Did anyone else find corrections?

·5· · · ·Hearing none.

·6· · · ·All those in favor of approving the October

·7· ·meeting minutes, please say "aye."

·8· · · · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

10· · · ·The meeting minutes are adopted.

11· · · ·Moving on to the operational updates.· I did --

12· ·is Mr. Caseday present?· Or --

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CASEDAY:· Yes.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.· Go ahead.

15· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CASEDAY:· Okay.· Good

16· ·afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.

17· ·This is Jarred Caseday with EDP Renewables for the

18· ·Kittitas Valley wind power project.

19· · · ·On October 24, 2024, we received a complaint from

20· ·a neighboring property regarding early-morning shadow

21· ·flicker.· This was caused by one turbine.· We

22· ·promptly addressed the issue, and we have received no

23· ·further complaints.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CASEDAY:· Thank you.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Wild Horse Wind Power

·2· ·Project.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· This is Sara

·4· ·Randolph.· I didn't hear Jennifer on the line.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Go ahead.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Good afternoon.

·7· ·Thank you, Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.

·8· ·For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site

·9· ·specialist for Wild Horse.

10· · · ·The facility update is provided in your packet.

11· ·There were no nonroutine updates to report.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

13· · · ·Chehalis Generation Facility.· Mr. Smith.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. SMITH:· Good afternoon, Chair

15· ·Drew, Council members, and EFSEC staff.· This is

16· ·Jeremy Smith, the operations manager for Chehalis

17· ·Generation Facility.

18· · · ·There are no nonroutine items to report.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

20· · · ·Grays Harbor Energy Center.· Is Mr. Sherin online

21· ·or Ms. Randolph?

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· I didn't hear Chris

23· ·come on.

24· · · ·Thank you again, Chair Drew, Council members, and

25· ·staff.· For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site



·1· ·specialist for Grays Harbor.

·2· · · ·The facility update is provided in your packet.

·3· ·There are no updates to report at this time.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

·5· · · ·Columbia Solar.· Mr. Cushing.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CUSHING:· Good afternoon.

·7· ·Thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC staff.· This is

·8· ·Thomas Cushing for Columbia Solar.

·9· · · ·There are no nonroutine updates to report.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

11· · · ·Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1 and 4.

12· ·Mr. Mehinagic.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. MEHINAGIC:· Good afternoon,

14· ·Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.· For the

15· ·record, this is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for

16· ·Energy Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and

17· ·Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.

18· · · ·During the week of October 28th, the Washington

19· ·State Fire Marshal conducted an inspection of

20· ·Columbia Generating Station non-power block buildings

21· ·and the Industrial Development Complex.· Several

22· ·actions were identified in the inspection report.  A

23· ·reinspection to verify open actions has -- have been

24· ·resolved will occur in approximately 60 to 90 days.

25· · · ·On October 30th, the Washington State Department



·1· ·of Ecology conducted a synthetic minor air permit

·2· ·inspection at Columbia Generating Station.· The

·3· ·purpose of the inspection was to assess the station's

·4· ·compliance with EFSEC Order No. 873, and that order

·5· ·is to operate multiple diesel-fired combustion units

·6· ·to provide steam and emergency power.

·7· · · ·The inspectors conducted a visual inspection /

·8· ·walk-down of Diesel Generator 5; Diesel Generators 1,

·9· ·2, and 3; and auxiliary boiler inside the

10· ·radiologically controlled area.· The inspectors noted

11· ·the run times -- run time readings on the Diesel

12· ·Generators 1, 2, 3, and 5.· No deficiencies were

13· ·noted by Ecology during the walk-down and exit

14· ·meetings.

15· · · ·In addition to the above inspections, Ecology and

16· ·EFSEC conducted an inspection of the Industrial

17· ·Development Complex water treatment facility;

18· ·specifically, the backwash water which makes its way

19· ·to the sanitary waste treatment facility.· Energy

20· ·Northwest gave the inspectors a high-level overview

21· ·of the water treatment process and observed the

22· ·backwash water exiting the water treatment facility.

23· ·No deficiencies were noted by Ecology or EFSEC during

24· ·our discussions.

25· · · ·That is all I have.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

·2· · · ·Are there any questions from Council members?

·3· · · ·Thank you for your report.

·4· · · ·Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar.· Mr. Crist.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CRIST:· Good afternoon, Chair

·6· ·Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.· So, for the record,

·7· ·this is Jacob Crist, senior project manager on behalf

·8· ·of Brookfield Renewable U.S., also accompanied by

·9· ·Nelson, who is our director of asset management from

10· ·the operations team.· He is on the call today.

11· · · ·For a construction status:· So we remain on -- on

12· ·schedule with our contractual schedule.

13· · · ·Some up- -- upcoming milestones that we're

14· ·tracking:· The biggest milestone is the earliest

15· ·possible COD date and utility sign-off date, which is

16· ·December 13th of this year, so -- and then targeting

17· ·substantial completion shortly after, with a capacity

18· ·test scheduled for early January of '25 and then an

19· ·availability testing period which would be scheduled

20· ·for sometime in late December.

21· · · ·So we did -- the current project early COD that

22· ·we were tracking is delayed due to some inverter

23· ·issue that -- that PCL is currently working through.

24· · · ·From the O & M perspective, we did receive the

25· ·O & M site certificate deliverables, or we did



·1· ·receive the approval from EFSEC for the O & M site

·2· ·certificate deliverables, so we do appreciate the

·3· ·EFSEC -- all EFSEC staff members that had -- had a

·4· ·part in that expedited review process and getting

·5· ·those to us.

·6· · · ·No discharge to report on-site for the month of

·7· ·October.· Frequent monitoring is still occurring with

·8· ·WSP.· No findings were reported in October from WSP.

·9· · · ·And then John Barnes was on-site for a SWPPP

10· ·inspection last month.· We did provide a flood action

11· ·plan, developed and provided for operational use, if

12· ·needed, per John Barnes' request.

13· · · ·And then I did want to again mention Nelson is

14· ·the asset manager for our operations team.· He'll

15· ·be -- we've -- we've had a discussion, and he will be

16· ·providing the operational updates likely starting in

17· ·January of 2025.

18· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CRIST:· Thank you.· Any

20· ·questions?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Any questions?

22· · · ·Thank you.· And congratulations on your continued

23· ·road towards making the site complete and ready to

24· ·start up with the utility, and we look forward to

25· ·hearing that next update in December.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CRIST:· Yes.· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Moving on to High Top

·3· ·and Ostrea.· Sara Randolph.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. RANDOLPH:· Thank you again,

·5· ·Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.· For the

·6· ·record, this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for

·7· ·Ostrea.

·8· · · ·Last month, EFSEC issued the construction

·9· ·stormwater general permit, or the CSWGP, letter of

10· ·coverage under the Department of Ecology general

11· ·permit.· There were no substantive comments to the

12· ·close of the comment period, which was October 19th.

13· ·EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and review

14· ·documents being sent by the certificate holder for

15· ·pre-construction plans.

16· · · ·We have no other updates at this time.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

18· · · ·Horse Heaven wind project:· Project update.· Amy

19· ·Moon.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. MOON:· Good afternoon, Council

21· ·Chair Drew and EFSEC Council members.· For the

22· ·record, this is Amy Moon reporting on the Horse

23· ·Heaven wind project.

24· · · ·On October 18th of 2024, EFSEC received the

25· ·governor's final decision and signed site



·1· ·certification agreement, or SCA, for the Horse Heaven

·2· ·wind project.· EFSEC notified the parties of the

·3· ·receipt of the signed SCA signed by the governor and

·4· ·the subsequent appeal period.· This appeal period

·5· ·ends on December 2nd.

·6· · · ·Does the Council have any questions?

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Are there any

·8· ·questions from Council members?

·9· · · ·Thank you.

10· · · ·Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project:· Project

11· ·update.· Mr. Caputo.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CAPUTO:· Thank you, Chair Drew

13· ·and Council members.

14· · · ·Following the October 16 Council meeting, staff

15· ·and the assistant attorney generals have worked to

16· ·prepare a recommendation report to the governor for

17· ·the Wautoma Solar energy project recommending

18· ·approval as well as an accompanying draft site

19· ·certification agreement, both of which can be found

20· ·in your Council packets.· These documents were

21· ·provided to Council for review ahead of today's

22· ·meeting, were also posted for public comment.· One

23· ·comment letter was received from the developer.

24· · · ·In response to the comment letter, staff proposed

25· ·the following edits to the documents.



·1· · · ·To the draft site certification agreement:· In

·2· ·Article I.C.9, on Page 4, please correct the name of

·3· ·the substation from "Black Rock Substation" to

·4· ·"Wautoma BPA Substation."

·5· · · ·And Article III.C, on Page 7, correct the

·6· ·spelling of the developer's contact address from

·7· ·"Noble," N-o-b-l-e, to "Nobel," N-o-b-e-l.

·8· · · ·To the draft recommendation:

·9· · · ·In Section II.D, on Page 5, please correct the

10· ·application date from June 8 to June 9.

11· · · ·In Footnote 8, on Page 7, please correct the

12· ·spelling of "Yakama" from Y-a-k-i-m-a to Y-a-k-a-m-a

13· ·to reflect the correct spelling in reference to the

14· ·Yakama Nation.

15· · · ·Staff requests the Council discuss and vote on

16· ·whether to approve the draft documents with the

17· ·proposed amendments.

18· · · ·May I answer any questions?

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Are there any

20· ·questions for Mr. Caputo?

21· · · ·So I do -- we did have an adjudicative

22· ·deliberation session just prior to this meeting, and

23· ·I do want to report to all at this meeting that the

24· ·Council voted unanimously in favor of the

25· ·adjudicative order to preempt the local zoning for



·1· ·the Wautoma project.· That order will be posted with

·2· ·the documents today or as soon as we get the final

·3· ·signatures on the document.

·4· · · ·Moving on to the Council -- the recommendation to

·5· ·the governor and the site certification agreement.

·6· · · ·For the staff, have those minor edits that came

·7· ·in been added to the SCA, the site certification

·8· ·agreement?

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. HAFKEMEYER:· Yes, Chair Drew,

10· ·we have provided the Council a red-lined copy that

11· ·reflects those four edits, two in each document.

12· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Okay.

13· · · ·So, Council members, we have discussed in

14· ·previous meetings the recommendation to the governor

15· ·as well as you've had a chance to review that and the

16· ·site certification agreement.· And I would ask if

17· ·there is a motion to approve that recommendation and

18· ·site certification agreement.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. YOUNG:· Lenny Young.· I move to

20· ·approve the recommendation and the SCA.

21· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

22· · · ·Second?

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster.

24· ·Second.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· So that brings it up



·1· ·for discussion.

·2· · · ·Do Council members have a discussion of this

·3· ·motion item?

·4· · · ·I can start off the discussion by saying that, as

·5· ·we deliberated on the Wautoma project, it was clear

·6· ·to the Council that this project had much positive,

·7· ·in that it's in a secluded location.· It -- the

·8· ·applicant worked very hard with staff and any

·9· ·interested parties to address concerns that came

10· ·forward from the project.

11· · · ·We held the adjudication and then the hearing on

12· ·the adjudication to see if others had comments or

13· ·concerns.· Overall, this is a very well-put-together

14· ·application.· The work by the staff and the work by

15· ·the applicant has been excellent in addressing all

16· ·concerns.· So I encourage a "yes" vote on this

17· ·recommendation to the governor.

18· · · ·Are there other comments?

19· · · ·I would -- I would also add that the property

20· ·owners have expressed that this action by the Council

21· ·will allow them to continue to farm with their

22· ·declining well and also to gain income from the

23· ·leasing of their property for this project.· So

24· ·appreciate the input from -- from them as well.

25· · · ·If there is nothing further, I would ask



·1· ·Ms. Grantham to call the roll for approval of the

·2· ·recommendation to the governor and the site

·3· ·certification agreement.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Certainly.

·5· · · ·Chair Drew.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Aye.

·7· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of --

·8· ·excuse me.· Department of Commerce, Elizabeth

·9· ·Osborne.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Aye.

11· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of

12· ·Ecology, Eli Levitt.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LEVITT:· Aye.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of Fish

15· ·and Wildlife, Mike Livingston.

16· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LIVINGSTON:· Aye.

17· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Department of

18· ·Natural Resources, Lenny Young.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. YOUNG:· Aye.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· Utilities &

21· ·Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.

22· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Aye.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· And for the Wautoma

24· ·Solar project:· For Benton County, Dave Sharp.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. SHARP:· Aye.



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. GRANTHAM:· And for the

·2· ·Washington State Department of Transportation, Paul

·3· ·Gonseth.

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. GONSETH:· Aye.

·5· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· The vote to approve

·6· ·this project is unanimous.· Thank you very much for

·7· ·all your work, Council members, and thank you very

·8· ·much for the work to move this application through

·9· ·our process to our staff.

10· · · ·With that, we'll move on to the Hop Hill Solar

11· ·Project update.· Mr. Barnes.· Something was going to

12· ·get me.

13· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair Drew

14· ·and Council members.· For the record, this is John

15· ·Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.

16· · · ·Staff continue to review materials for the

17· ·applicant -- from the applicant -- excuse me -- in

18· ·coordination with our contracted agencies, our

19· ·consultant, and tribal governments.

20· · · ·On November 12th, 2024, EFSEC received from the

21· ·applicant a request to extend the 12-month

22· ·application review period.· The 12 -- the review

23· ·deadline for the Hop Hill application is set to

24· ·expire on December 22nd of 2024.· The 12-month

25· ·extension would allow the applicant to complete the



·1· ·additional studies and allow EFSEC to be able to

·2· ·issue a SEPA threshold determination.

·3· · · ·The applicant has drafted an application review

·4· ·extension letter that has been placed on the EFSEC

·5· ·website for public review comments ahead of this

·6· ·meeting.· No comments were received.· If granted, the

·7· ·new application deadline would be December 22nd,

·8· ·2025.

·9· · · ·At this time, staff recommends the Council vote

10· ·to approve the application extension now in front of

11· ·you.

12· · · ·Are there any questions?

13· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Are there any

14· ·questions from Council members?

15· · · ·Hearing none.

16· · · ·Is there a motion to approve the extension

17· ·request for Hop Hill Solar?

18· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster.· So

19· ·moved.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Second?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. OSBORNE:· Elizabeth Osborne.

22· ·Second.

23· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

24· ·Discussion?

25· · · ·All those in favor, please say "aye."



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

·2· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

·3· · · ·Motion carries.· Thank you.

·4· · · ·Moving on to Carriger Solar project update.

·5· ·Ms. Snarski.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Thank you, Chair Drew

·7· ·and Council members.· For the record, this is Joanne

·8· ·Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.

·9· · · ·On November 8th, we received concurrence from

10· ·Ecology regarding the findings of the amended and

11· ·revised wetlands and water bodies report.· It's dated

12· ·October 2024.

13· · · ·Also at the end of October, we received feedback

14· ·from the Washington State Department of

15· ·Transportation on the applicant's scoping letter for

16· ·the traffic impact analysis.· With that, Cypress

17· ·Creek Renewables is moving forward on the development

18· ·of their traffic impact analysis.

19· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. SNARSKI:· Any questions?

21· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you for your

22· ·report.

23· · · ·Moving on to the Wallula Gap project update.

24· ·Mr. Barnes.

25· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. BARNES:· Thank you, Chair Drew



·1· ·and Council members.· For the record, this is John

·2· ·Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.

·3· · · ·On April 23rd, 2024, EFSEC held a land-use

·4· ·consistency hearing at the Kennewick Valley Grange,

·5· ·in Benton County, for the Wallula Gap project.

·6· ·Following that hearing, a land-use order of

·7· ·inconsistency for the application was developed in

·8· ·coordination with the administrative law judge, our

·9· ·assistant attorney generals, and staff.· Our AAG is

10· ·available on the call if there are any questions.

11· · · ·The land-use order was placed on the EFSEC

12· ·website for public review and comments ahead of this

13· ·meeting.· No comments were received.

14· · · ·At this time, staff recommend the Council vote to

15· ·approve the land-use order now in front of you.

16· · · ·Are there any questions?

17· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Are there any

18· ·questions?

19· · · ·So, again, this is an order finding that the

20· ·project is inconsistent with the local land-use --

21· ·with the land use.· Leave it as a period there.

22· ·Sorry about that.· Words fail me.

23· · · ·So you have had a chance to review this land-use

24· ·order.

25· · · ·Is there a motion to approve the land-use order?



·1· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. LIVINGSTON:· Mike Livingston.

·2· ·So moved.

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Second?

·4· · · · · · · · · · ·MS. BREWSTER:· Stacey Brewster.

·5· ·Second.

·6· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Discussion?

·7· · · ·All those in favor of approving the land-use

·8· ·order for the Wallula Gap project, please say "aye."

·9· · · · · · · · · · ·MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:· Aye.

10· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Opposed?

11· · · ·Motion is carried.· Thank you.

12· · · ·We now have a project update for Goldeneye BESS.

13· ·Mr. Ahmed.

14· · · · · · · · · · ·MR. CAPUTO:· Chair Drew and

15· ·Council, for the record, this is Lance Caputo

16· ·reporting for Zia Ahmed, siting specialist for the

17· ·Goldeneye battery energy storage project.

18· · · ·We are currently finalizing a second data request

19· ·for the applicants and plan to send it by the end of

20· ·November.· We are continuing to review the

21· ·application materials in coordination with our

22· ·contracted agencies.

23· · · ·There are no other updates at this time.

24· · · · · · · · · · ·CHAIR DREW:· Thank you.

25· · · ·With that, that completes our agenda for today.



·1· ·So thank you, all, for your participation.· And this

·2· ·meeting is adjourned.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · · · (Meeting adjourned at

·4· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·1:59 p.m.)
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 1                     BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

 2   November 20, 2024, at 621 Woodland Square Loop

 3   Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:31 p.m., the

 4   following Monthly Meeting of the Washington State

 5   Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to

 6   wit:

 7

 8                       <<<<<< >>>>>>

 9

10                     CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon.  This

11   is Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site

12   Evaluation Council, calling our November meeting to

13   order.

14       Ms. Grantham, will you call the roll.

15                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair

16   Drew.

17       Department of Commerce.

18                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,

19   present.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

21   Ecology.

22                     MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, present.

23                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish

24   and Wildlife.

25                     MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston,
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 1   present.

 2                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

 3   Natural Resources.

 4                     MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young, present.

 5                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities &

 6   Transportation Commission.

 7                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster,

 8   present.

 9                     MS. GRANTHAM:  For local government

10   and optional State agencies:  For the Horse Heaven

11   project:  Benton County, Ed Brost.

12       I believe I saw Mr. Brost's phone number in the

13   chat.

14       Okay.  Wautoma Solar:  For Benton County, Dave

15   Sharp.

16       Washington State Department of Transportation,

17   Paul Gonseth.

18                     MR. GONSETH:  Paul Gonseth,

19   present.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Hop Hill Solar:

21   Benton County, Paul Krupin.

22       Carriger Solar:  Klickitat County, Matt Chiles.

23       Wallula Gap --

24                     MR. CHILES:  Matt --

25                     MS. GRANTHAM:  -- project:  For
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 1   Bent- -- oh.  Is that Matt Chiles?

 2       Mr. Chiles, was that you?

 3       Hearing none.  I will move on.

 4       Wallula Gap:  For Benton County, Adam Fyall.

 5       And then for Goldeneye BESS:  For Skagit County,

 6   Bobby [sic] Eckroth.

 7                     MR. ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth,

 8   present.

 9                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

10       Assistant attorney generals.  Jon Thompson.

11                     MR. THOMPSON:  Present.

12                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Zack Packer.

13                     MR. PACKER:  Present.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And I know that we

15   have a new assistant attorney general in.  There is a

16   Talia, but I do not know how to pronounce your last

17   name.

18       Talia, are you present?

19                     MR. THOMPSON:  She is not present.

20   Talia Thuet.

21                     MS. GRANTHAM:  "Thuet."  Perfect.

22   Thank you.

23       Administrative law judges.  Adam Torem.

24       Laura Bradley.

25       Dan Gerard.
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 1       Or Travis Dupree.

 2       For Council staff, I will call those anticipated

 3   to speak today.

 4       Sonia Bumpus.

 5                     MS. BUMPUS:  Present.

 6                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.

 7                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.

 8                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.

 9                     MS. MOON:  Amy Moon, present.

10                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.

11                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.

12                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.

13                     MR. CAPUTO:  Present.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.

15                     MR. BARNES:  Present.

16                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.

17                     MS. SNARSKI:  Present.

18                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And Zia Ahmed.

19       Operational updates.  Kittitas Valley wind

20   project.

21                     MR. CASEDAY:  Jarred Caseday,

22   present.

23                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind

24   Power Project.

25       Grays Harbor Energy Center.
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 1       Chehalis Generation Facility.

 2                     MR. SMITH:  Jeremy Smith, present.

 3                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating

 4   Station.

 5                     MR. MEHINAGIC:  Denis Mehinagic,

 6   present.

 7                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.

 8       And Goose Prairie Solar.

 9                     MR. CRIST:  Jacob Crist, present.

10                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have

11   anyone present for the counsel for the environment?

12                     MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld and

13   Yuriy Korol are present.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

15       Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.  Thank

16   you.

17                     CHAIR DREW:  Would you call the

18   names of the Council members that we did not hear

19   from.  I think a couple of them are there online.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Will do.

21       So I will circle back over to Wautoma Solar:  For

22   Benton County, Dave Sharp.

23                     MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp just joined.

24                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you,

25   Mr. Sharp.
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 1       Hop Hill Solar:  For Benton County, Paul Krupin.

 2       And then for Wallula Gap:  For Benton County,

 3   Adam Fyall.

 4       And I did mark Ed Brost present, but I want to

 5   make sure, if he is unmuted, for Benton County for

 6   Horse Heaven.

 7       That is everyone, Chair.

 8                     CHAIR DREW:  Okay.

 9                     MR. CUSHING:  This --

10                     CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.  Somebody...

11                     MR. CUSHING:  Apologies.

12                     MR. BROST:  Yeah, this is --

13                     MR. CUSHING:  Thomas Cushing --

14                     MR. BROST:  -- Ed Brost.

15                     MR. CUSHING:  -- present for --

16   Thomas Cushing present for Columbia Solar.  I

17   apologize.  My computer restarted in the middle of

18   roll.

19                     CHAIR DREW:  Understood.  Thank

20   you.

21                     MR. CUSHING:  Thank you.

22                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you, all.  Yes,

23   we've had a little bit of weather in our state,

24   weather all the time, so appreciate everybody being

25   online who can be today.
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 1       You have the proposed agenda in front of you.

 2   Council members, is there a motion to adopt the

 3   proposed agenda?

 4                     MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.

 5                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.

 6   Second.

 7                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 8       Any discussion?

 9       All those in favor of adopting the agenda, say

10   "aye."

11                     MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

12                     CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

13       The agenda's adopted.

14       Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have the

15   October 16th monthly meeting minutes.

16       Is there a motion to approve the monthly meeting

17   minutes?

18                     MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.

19   So moved.

20                     CHAIR DREW:  Is Michael --

21                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth --

22                     CHAIR DREW:  -- Living- --

23                     MS. OSBORNE:  -- Osborne.

24   (Unintelligible.)

25                     CHAIR DREW:  Michael Livingston
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 1   moved it.  Elizabeth Osborne, second.

 2       Okay.  I did not find corrections to the October

 3   meeting minutes.

 4       Did anyone else find corrections?

 5       Hearing none.

 6       All those in favor of approving the October

 7   meeting minutes, please say "aye."

 8                     MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 9                     CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

10       The meeting minutes are adopted.

11       Moving on to the operational updates.  I did --

12   is Mr. Caseday present?  Or --

13                     MR. CASEDAY:  Yes.

14                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Go ahead.

15                     MR. CASEDAY:  Okay.  Good

16   afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.

17   This is Jarred Caseday with EDP Renewables for the

18   Kittitas Valley wind power project.

19       On October 24, 2024, we received a complaint from

20   a neighboring property regarding early-morning shadow

21   flicker.  This was caused by one turbine.  We

22   promptly addressed the issue, and we have received no

23   further complaints.

24                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

25                     MR. CASEDAY:  Thank you.
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 1                     CHAIR DREW:  Wild Horse Wind Power

 2   Project.

 3                     MS. RANDOLPH:  This is Sara

 4   Randolph.  I didn't hear Jennifer on the line.

 5                     CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.

 6                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon.

 7   Thank you, Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.

 8   For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site

 9   specialist for Wild Horse.

10       The facility update is provided in your packet.

11   There were no nonroutine updates to report.

12                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

13       Chehalis Generation Facility.  Mr. Smith.

14                     MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair

15   Drew, Council members, and EFSEC staff.  This is

16   Jeremy Smith, the operations manager for Chehalis

17   Generation Facility.

18       There are no nonroutine items to report.

19                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

20       Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Is Mr. Sherin online

21   or Ms. Randolph?

22                     MS. RANDOLPH:  I didn't hear Chris

23   come on.

24       Thank you again, Chair Drew, Council members, and

25   staff.  For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site
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 1   specialist for Grays Harbor.

 2       The facility update is provided in your packet.

 3   There are no updates to report at this time.

 4                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 5       Columbia Solar.  Mr. Cushing.

 6                     MR. CUSHING:  Good afternoon.

 7   Thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC staff.  This is

 8   Thomas Cushing for Columbia Solar.

 9       There are no nonroutine updates to report.

10                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

11       Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1 and 4.

12   Mr. Mehinagic.

13                     MR. MEHINAGIC:  Good afternoon,

14   Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the

15   record, this is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for

16   Energy Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and

17   Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.

18       During the week of October 28th, the Washington

19   State Fire Marshal conducted an inspection of

20   Columbia Generating Station non-power block buildings

21   and the Industrial Development Complex.  Several

22   actions were identified in the inspection report.  A

23   reinspection to verify open actions has -- have been

24   resolved will occur in approximately 60 to 90 days.

25       On October 30th, the Washington State Department
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 1   of Ecology conducted a synthetic minor air permit

 2   inspection at Columbia Generating Station.  The

 3   purpose of the inspection was to assess the station's

 4   compliance with EFSEC Order No. 873, and that order

 5   is to operate multiple diesel-fired combustion units

 6   to provide steam and emergency power.

 7       The inspectors conducted a visual inspection /

 8   walk-down of Diesel Generator 5; Diesel Generators 1,

 9   2, and 3; and auxiliary boiler inside the

10   radiologically controlled area.  The inspectors noted

11   the run times -- run time readings on the Diesel

12   Generators 1, 2, 3, and 5.  No deficiencies were

13   noted by Ecology during the walk-down and exit

14   meetings.

15       In addition to the above inspections, Ecology and

16   EFSEC conducted an inspection of the Industrial

17   Development Complex water treatment facility;

18   specifically, the backwash water which makes its way

19   to the sanitary waste treatment facility.  Energy

20   Northwest gave the inspectors a high-level overview

21   of the water treatment process and observed the

22   backwash water exiting the water treatment facility.

23   No deficiencies were noted by Ecology or EFSEC during

24   our discussions.

25       That is all I have.
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 1                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 2       Are there any questions from Council members?

 3       Thank you for your report.

 4       Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar.  Mr. Crist.

 5                     MR. CRIST:  Good afternoon, Chair

 6   Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.  So, for the record,

 7   this is Jacob Crist, senior project manager on behalf

 8   of Brookfield Renewable U.S., also accompanied by

 9   Nelson, who is our director of asset management from

10   the operations team.  He is on the call today.

11       For a construction status:  So we remain on -- on

12   schedule with our contractual schedule.

13       Some up- -- upcoming milestones that we're

14   tracking:  The biggest milestone is the earliest

15   possible COD date and utility sign-off date, which is

16   December 13th of this year, so -- and then targeting

17   substantial completion shortly after, with a capacity

18   test scheduled for early January of '25 and then an

19   availability testing period which would be scheduled

20   for sometime in late December.

21       So we did -- the current project early COD that

22   we were tracking is delayed due to some inverter

23   issue that -- that PCL is currently working through.

24       From the O & M perspective, we did receive the

25   O & M site certificate deliverables, or we did
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 1   receive the approval from EFSEC for the O & M site

 2   certificate deliverables, so we do appreciate the

 3   EFSEC -- all EFSEC staff members that had -- had a

 4   part in that expedited review process and getting

 5   those to us.

 6       No discharge to report on-site for the month of

 7   October.  Frequent monitoring is still occurring with

 8   WSP.  No findings were reported in October from WSP.

 9       And then John Barnes was on-site for a SWPPP

10   inspection last month.  We did provide a flood action

11   plan, developed and provided for operational use, if

12   needed, per John Barnes' request.

13       And then I did want to again mention Nelson is

14   the asset manager for our operations team.  He'll

15   be -- we've -- we've had a discussion, and he will be

16   providing the operational updates likely starting in

17   January of 2025.

18                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

19                     MR. CRIST:  Thank you.  Any

20   questions?

21                     CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?

22       Thank you.  And congratulations on your continued

23   road towards making the site complete and ready to

24   start up with the utility, and we look forward to

25   hearing that next update in December.
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 1                     MR. CRIST:  Yes.  Thank you.

 2                     CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to High Top

 3   and Ostrea.  Sara Randolph.

 4                     MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you again,

 5   Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the

 6   record, this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for

 7   Ostrea.

 8       Last month, EFSEC issued the construction

 9   stormwater general permit, or the CSWGP, letter of

10   coverage under the Department of Ecology general

11   permit.  There were no substantive comments to the

12   close of the comment period, which was October 19th.

13   EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and review

14   documents being sent by the certificate holder for

15   pre-construction plans.

16       We have no other updates at this time.

17                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

18       Horse Heaven wind project:  Project update.  Amy

19   Moon.

20                     MS. MOON:  Good afternoon, Council

21   Chair Drew and EFSEC Council members.  For the

22   record, this is Amy Moon reporting on the Horse

23   Heaven wind project.

24       On October 18th of 2024, EFSEC received the

25   governor's final decision and signed site
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 1   certification agreement, or SCA, for the Horse Heaven

 2   wind project.  EFSEC notified the parties of the

 3   receipt of the signed SCA signed by the governor and

 4   the subsequent appeal period.  This appeal period

 5   ends on December 2nd.

 6       Does the Council have any questions?

 7                     CHAIR DREW:  Are there any

 8   questions from Council members?

 9       Thank you.

10       Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project:  Project

11   update.  Mr. Caputo.

12                     MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew

13   and Council members.

14       Following the October 16 Council meeting, staff

15   and the assistant attorney generals have worked to

16   prepare a recommendation report to the governor for

17   the Wautoma Solar energy project recommending

18   approval as well as an accompanying draft site

19   certification agreement, both of which can be found

20   in your Council packets.  These documents were

21   provided to Council for review ahead of today's

22   meeting, were also posted for public comment.  One

23   comment letter was received from the developer.

24       In response to the comment letter, staff proposed

25   the following edits to the documents.
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 1       To the draft site certification agreement:  In

 2   Article I.C.9, on Page 4, please correct the name of

 3   the substation from "Black Rock Substation" to

 4   "Wautoma BPA Substation."

 5       And Article III.C, on Page 7, correct the

 6   spelling of the developer's contact address from

 7   "Noble," N-o-b-l-e, to "Nobel," N-o-b-e-l.

 8       To the draft recommendation:

 9       In Section II.D, on Page 5, please correct the

10   application date from June 8 to June 9.

11       In Footnote 8, on Page 7, please correct the

12   spelling of "Yakama" from Y-a-k-i-m-a to Y-a-k-a-m-a

13   to reflect the correct spelling in reference to the

14   Yakama Nation.

15       Staff requests the Council discuss and vote on

16   whether to approve the draft documents with the

17   proposed amendments.

18       May I answer any questions?

19                     CHAIR DREW:  Are there any

20   questions for Mr. Caputo?

21       So I do -- we did have an adjudicative

22   deliberation session just prior to this meeting, and

23   I do want to report to all at this meeting that the

24   Council voted unanimously in favor of the

25   adjudicative order to preempt the local zoning for
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 1   the Wautoma project.  That order will be posted with

 2   the documents today or as soon as we get the final

 3   signatures on the document.

 4       Moving on to the Council -- the recommendation to

 5   the governor and the site certification agreement.

 6       For the staff, have those minor edits that came

 7   in been added to the SCA, the site certification

 8   agreement?

 9                     MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Yes, Chair Drew,

10   we have provided the Council a red-lined copy that

11   reflects those four edits, two in each document.

12                     CHAIR DREW:  Okay.

13       So, Council members, we have discussed in

14   previous meetings the recommendation to the governor

15   as well as you've had a chance to review that and the

16   site certification agreement.  And I would ask if

17   there is a motion to approve that recommendation and

18   site certification agreement.

19                     MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  I move to

20   approve the recommendation and the SCA.

21                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

22       Second?

23                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.

24   Second.

25                     CHAIR DREW:  So that brings it up
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 1   for discussion.

 2       Do Council members have a discussion of this

 3   motion item?

 4       I can start off the discussion by saying that, as

 5   we deliberated on the Wautoma project, it was clear

 6   to the Council that this project had much positive,

 7   in that it's in a secluded location.  It -- the

 8   applicant worked very hard with staff and any

 9   interested parties to address concerns that came

10   forward from the project.

11       We held the adjudication and then the hearing on

12   the adjudication to see if others had comments or

13   concerns.  Overall, this is a very well-put-together

14   application.  The work by the staff and the work by

15   the applicant has been excellent in addressing all

16   concerns.  So I encourage a "yes" vote on this

17   recommendation to the governor.

18       Are there other comments?

19       I would -- I would also add that the property

20   owners have expressed that this action by the Council

21   will allow them to continue to farm with their

22   declining well and also to gain income from the

23   leasing of their property for this project.  So

24   appreciate the input from -- from them as well.

25       If there is nothing further, I would ask
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 1   Ms. Grantham to call the roll for approval of the

 2   recommendation to the governor and the site

 3   certification agreement.

 4                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly.

 5       Chair Drew.

 6                     CHAIR DREW:  Aye.

 7                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of --

 8   excuse me.  Department of Commerce, Elizabeth

 9   Osborne.

10                     MS. OSBORNE:  Aye.

11                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

12   Ecology, Eli Levitt.

13                     MR. LEVITT:  Aye.

14                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish

15   and Wildlife, Mike Livingston.

16                     MR. LIVINGSTON:  Aye.

17                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of

18   Natural Resources, Lenny Young.

19                     MR. YOUNG:  Aye.

20                     MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities &

21   Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.

22                     MS. BREWSTER:  Aye.

23                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And for the Wautoma

24   Solar project:  For Benton County, Dave Sharp.

25                     MR. SHARP:  Aye.
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 1                     MS. GRANTHAM:  And for the

 2   Washington State Department of Transportation, Paul

 3   Gonseth.

 4                     MR. GONSETH:  Aye.

 5                     CHAIR DREW:  The vote to approve

 6   this project is unanimous.  Thank you very much for

 7   all your work, Council members, and thank you very

 8   much for the work to move this application through

 9   our process to our staff.

10       With that, we'll move on to the Hop Hill Solar

11   Project update.  Mr. Barnes.  Something was going to

12   get me.

13                     MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew

14   and Council members.  For the record, this is John

15   Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.

16       Staff continue to review materials for the

17   applicant -- from the applicant -- excuse me -- in

18   coordination with our contracted agencies, our

19   consultant, and tribal governments.

20       On November 12th, 2024, EFSEC received from the

21   applicant a request to extend the 12-month

22   application review period.  The 12 -- the review

23   deadline for the Hop Hill application is set to

24   expire on December 22nd of 2024.  The 12-month

25   extension would allow the applicant to complete the
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 1   additional studies and allow EFSEC to be able to

 2   issue a SEPA threshold determination.

 3       The applicant has drafted an application review

 4   extension letter that has been placed on the EFSEC

 5   website for public review comments ahead of this

 6   meeting.  No comments were received.  If granted, the

 7   new application deadline would be December 22nd,

 8   2025.

 9       At this time, staff recommends the Council vote

10   to approve the application extension now in front of

11   you.

12       Are there any questions?

13                     CHAIR DREW:  Are there any

14   questions from Council members?

15       Hearing none.

16       Is there a motion to approve the extension

17   request for Hop Hill Solar?

18                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  So

19   moved.

20                     CHAIR DREW:  Second?

21                     MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.

22   Second.

23                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

24   Discussion?

25       All those in favor, please say "aye."
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 1                     MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

 2                     CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 3       Motion carries.  Thank you.

 4       Moving on to Carriger Solar project update.

 5   Ms. Snarski.

 6                     MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew

 7   and Council members.  For the record, this is Joanne

 8   Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.

 9       On November 8th, we received concurrence from

10   Ecology regarding the findings of the amended and

11   revised wetlands and water bodies report.  It's dated

12   October 2024.

13       Also at the end of October, we received feedback

14   from the Washington State Department of

15   Transportation on the applicant's scoping letter for

16   the traffic impact analysis.  With that, Cypress

17   Creek Renewables is moving forward on the development

18   of their traffic impact analysis.

19                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

20                     MS. SNARSKI:  Any questions?

21                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you for your

22   report.

23       Moving on to the Wallula Gap project update.

24   Mr. Barnes.

25                     MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew
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 1   and Council members.  For the record, this is John

 2   Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.

 3       On April 23rd, 2024, EFSEC held a land-use

 4   consistency hearing at the Kennewick Valley Grange,

 5   in Benton County, for the Wallula Gap project.

 6   Following that hearing, a land-use order of

 7   inconsistency for the application was developed in

 8   coordination with the administrative law judge, our

 9   assistant attorney generals, and staff.  Our AAG is

10   available on the call if there are any questions.

11       The land-use order was placed on the EFSEC

12   website for public review and comments ahead of this

13   meeting.  No comments were received.

14       At this time, staff recommend the Council vote to

15   approve the land-use order now in front of you.

16       Are there any questions?

17                     CHAIR DREW:  Are there any

18   questions?

19       So, again, this is an order finding that the

20   project is inconsistent with the local land-use --

21   with the land use.  Leave it as a period there.

22   Sorry about that.  Words fail me.

23       So you have had a chance to review this land-use

24   order.

25       Is there a motion to approve the land-use order?
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 1                     MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.

 2   So moved.

 3                     CHAIR DREW:  Second?

 4                     MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.

 5   Second.

 6                     CHAIR DREW:  Discussion?

 7       All those in favor of approving the land-use

 8   order for the Wallula Gap project, please say "aye."

 9                     MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.

10                     CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

11       Motion is carried.  Thank you.

12       We now have a project update for Goldeneye BESS.

13   Mr. Ahmed.

14                     MR. CAPUTO:  Chair Drew and

15   Council, for the record, this is Lance Caputo

16   reporting for Zia Ahmed, siting specialist for the

17   Goldeneye battery energy storage project.

18       We are currently finalizing a second data request

19   for the applicants and plan to send it by the end of

20   November.  We are continuing to review the

21   application materials in coordination with our

22   contracted agencies.

23       There are no other updates at this time.

24                     CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

25       With that, that completes our agenda for today.
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 1   So thank you, all, for your participation.  And this

 2   meeting is adjourned.

 3                            (Meeting adjourned at

 4                             1:59 p.m.)

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

0031

 1   STATE OF WASHINGTON )     I, John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR,

                         ) ss  a certified court reporter

 2   County of Pierce    )     in the State of Washington, do

                               hereby certify:

 3

 4

          That the foregoing Monthly Meeting of the Washington

 5   State Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was conducted

     in my presence and adjourned on November 20, 2024, and

 6   thereafter was transcribed under my direction; that the

     transcript is a full, true and complete transcript of the

 7   said meeting, transcribed to the best of my ability;

 8        That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

     of any party to this matter or relative or employee of any

 9   such attorney or counsel and that I am not financially

     interested in the said matter or the outcome thereof;

10

          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand

11   this 9th day of December, 2024.
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15                             _________________________________

                               /s/John M.S. Botelho, CCR, RPR

16                             Certified Court Reporter No. 2976

                               (Certification expires 5/26/2025.)
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		187						LN		7		23		false		          23          Wallula Gap --				false

		188						LN		7		24		false		          24                        MR. CHILES:  Matt --				false

		189						LN		7		25		false		          25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  -- project:  For				false

		190						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		191						LN		8		1		false		           1      Bent- -- oh.  Is that Matt Chiles?				false

		192						LN		8		2		false		           2          Mr. Chiles, was that you?				false

		193						LN		8		3		false		           3          Hearing none.  I will move on.				false

		194						LN		8		4		false		           4          Wallula Gap:  For Benton County, Adam Fyall.				false

		195						LN		8		5		false		           5          And then for Goldeneye BESS:  For Skagit County,				false

		196						LN		8		6		false		           6      Bobby [sic] Eckroth.				false

		197						LN		8		7		false		           7                        MR. ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth,				false

		198						LN		8		8		false		           8      present.				false

		199						LN		8		9		false		           9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		200						LN		8		10		false		          10          Assistant attorney generals.  Jon Thompson.				false

		201						LN		8		11		false		          11                        MR. THOMPSON:  Present.				false

		202						LN		8		12		false		          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Zack Packer.				false

		203						LN		8		13		false		          13                        MR. PACKER:  Present.				false

		204						LN		8		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And I know that we				false

		205						LN		8		15		false		          15      have a new assistant attorney general in.  There is a				false

		206						LN		8		16		false		          16      Talia, but I do not know how to pronounce your last				false

		207						LN		8		17		false		          17      name.				false

		208						LN		8		18		false		          18          Talia, are you present?				false

		209						LN		8		19		false		          19                        MR. THOMPSON:  She is not present.				false

		210						LN		8		20		false		          20      Talia Thuet.				false

		211						LN		8		21		false		          21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  "Thuet."  Perfect.				false

		212						LN		8		22		false		          22      Thank you.				false

		213						LN		8		23		false		          23          Administrative law judges.  Adam Torem.				false

		214						LN		8		24		false		          24          Laura Bradley.				false

		215						LN		8		25		false		          25          Dan Gerard.				false

		216						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		217						LN		9		1		false		           1          Or Travis Dupree.				false

		218						LN		9		2		false		           2          For Council staff, I will call those anticipated				false

		219						LN		9		3		false		           3      to speak today.				false

		220						LN		9		4		false		           4          Sonia Bumpus.				false

		221						LN		9		5		false		           5                        MS. BUMPUS:  Present.				false

		222						LN		9		6		false		           6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.				false

		223						LN		9		7		false		           7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.				false

		224						LN		9		8		false		           8                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.				false

		225						LN		9		9		false		           9                        MS. MOON:  Amy Moon, present.				false

		226						LN		9		10		false		          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.				false

		227						LN		9		11		false		          11                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.				false

		228						LN		9		12		false		          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.				false

		229						LN		9		13		false		          13                        MR. CAPUTO:  Present.				false

		230						LN		9		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.				false

		231						LN		9		15		false		          15                        MR. BARNES:  Present.				false

		232						LN		9		16		false		          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.				false

		233						LN		9		17		false		          17                        MS. SNARSKI:  Present.				false

		234						LN		9		18		false		          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Zia Ahmed.				false

		235						LN		9		19		false		          19          Operational updates.  Kittitas Valley wind				false

		236						LN		9		20		false		          20      project.				false

		237						LN		9		21		false		          21                        MR. CASEDAY:  Jarred Caseday,				false

		238						LN		9		22		false		          22      present.				false

		239						LN		9		23		false		          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind				false

		240						LN		9		24		false		          24      Power Project.				false

		241						LN		9		25		false		          25          Grays Harbor Energy Center.				false

		242						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		243						LN		10		1		false		           1          Chehalis Generation Facility.				false

		244						LN		10		2		false		           2                        MR. SMITH:  Jeremy Smith, present.				false

		245						LN		10		3		false		           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating				false

		246						LN		10		4		false		           4      Station.				false

		247						LN		10		5		false		           5                        MR. MEHINAGIC:  Denis Mehinagic,				false

		248						LN		10		6		false		           6      present.				false

		249						LN		10		7		false		           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.				false

		250						LN		10		8		false		           8          And Goose Prairie Solar.				false

		251						LN		10		9		false		           9                        MR. CRIST:  Jacob Crist, present.				false

		252						LN		10		10		false		          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have				false

		253						LN		10		11		false		          11      anyone present for the counsel for the environment?				false

		254						LN		10		12		false		          12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld and				false

		255						LN		10		13		false		          13      Yuriy Korol are present.				false

		256						LN		10		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.				false

		257						LN		10		15		false		          15          Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.  Thank				false

		258						LN		10		16		false		          16      you.				false

		259						LN		10		17		false		          17                        CHAIR DREW:  Would you call the				false

		260						LN		10		18		false		          18      names of the Council members that we did not hear				false

		261						LN		10		19		false		          19      from.  I think a couple of them are there online.				false

		262						LN		10		20		false		          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Will do.				false

		263						LN		10		21		false		          21          So I will circle back over to Wautoma Solar:  For				false

		264						LN		10		22		false		          22      Benton County, Dave Sharp.				false

		265						LN		10		23		false		          23                        MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp just joined.				false

		266						LN		10		24		false		          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you,				false

		267						LN		10		25		false		          25      Mr. Sharp.				false

		268						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		269						LN		11		1		false		           1          Hop Hill Solar:  For Benton County, Paul Krupin.				false

		270						LN		11		2		false		           2          And then for Wallula Gap:  For Benton County,				false

		271						LN		11		3		false		           3      Adam Fyall.				false

		272						LN		11		4		false		           4          And I did mark Ed Brost present, but I want to				false

		273						LN		11		5		false		           5      make sure, if he is unmuted, for Benton County for				false

		274						LN		11		6		false		           6      Horse Heaven.				false

		275						LN		11		7		false		           7          That is everyone, Chair.				false

		276						LN		11		8		false		           8                        CHAIR DREW:  Okay.				false

		277						LN		11		9		false		           9                        MR. CUSHING:  This --				false

		278						LN		11		10		false		          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.  Somebody...				false

		279						LN		11		11		false		          11                        MR. CUSHING:  Apologies.				false

		280						LN		11		12		false		          12                        MR. BROST:  Yeah, this is --				false

		281						LN		11		13		false		          13                        MR. CUSHING:  Thomas Cushing --				false

		282						LN		11		14		false		          14                        MR. BROST:  -- Ed Brost.				false

		283						LN		11		15		false		          15                        MR. CUSHING:  -- present for --				false

		284						LN		11		16		false		          16      Thomas Cushing present for Columbia Solar.  I				false

		285						LN		11		17		false		          17      apologize.  My computer restarted in the middle of				false

		286						LN		11		18		false		          18      roll.				false

		287						LN		11		19		false		          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Understood.  Thank				false

		288						LN		11		20		false		          20      you.				false

		289						LN		11		21		false		          21                        MR. CUSHING:  Thank you.				false

		290						LN		11		22		false		          22                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you, all.  Yes,				false

		291						LN		11		23		false		          23      we've had a little bit of weather in our state,				false

		292						LN		11		24		false		          24      weather all the time, so appreciate everybody being				false

		293						LN		11		25		false		          25      online who can be today.				false

		294						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		295						LN		12		1		false		           1          You have the proposed agenda in front of you.				false

		296						LN		12		2		false		           2      Council members, is there a motion to adopt the				false

		297						LN		12		3		false		           3      proposed agenda?				false

		298						LN		12		4		false		           4                        MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.				false

		299						LN		12		5		false		           5                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.				false

		300						LN		12		6		false		           6      Second.				false

		301						LN		12		7		false		           7                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		302						LN		12		8		false		           8          Any discussion?				false

		303						LN		12		9		false		           9          All those in favor of adopting the agenda, say				false

		304						LN		12		10		false		          10      "aye."				false

		305						LN		12		11		false		          11                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		306						LN		12		12		false		          12                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		307						LN		12		13		false		          13          The agenda's adopted.				false

		308						LN		12		14		false		          14          Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have the				false

		309						LN		12		15		false		          15      October 16th monthly meeting minutes.				false

		310						LN		12		16		false		          16          Is there a motion to approve the monthly meeting				false

		311						LN		12		17		false		          17      minutes?				false

		312						LN		12		18		false		          18                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.				false

		313						LN		12		19		false		          19      So moved.				false

		314						LN		12		20		false		          20                        CHAIR DREW:  Is Michael --				false

		315						LN		12		21		false		          21                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth --				false

		316						LN		12		22		false		          22                        CHAIR DREW:  -- Living- --				false

		317						LN		12		23		false		          23                        MS. OSBORNE:  -- Osborne.				false

		318						LN		12		24		false		          24      (Unintelligible.)				false

		319						LN		12		25		false		          25                        CHAIR DREW:  Michael Livingston				false

		320						PG		13		0		false		page 13				false

		321						LN		13		1		false		           1      moved it.  Elizabeth Osborne, second.				false

		322						LN		13		2		false		           2          Okay.  I did not find corrections to the October				false

		323						LN		13		3		false		           3      meeting minutes.				false

		324						LN		13		4		false		           4          Did anyone else find corrections?				false

		325						LN		13		5		false		           5          Hearing none.				false

		326						LN		13		6		false		           6          All those in favor of approving the October				false

		327						LN		13		7		false		           7      meeting minutes, please say "aye."				false

		328						LN		13		8		false		           8                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		329						LN		13		9		false		           9                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		330						LN		13		10		false		          10          The meeting minutes are adopted.				false

		331						LN		13		11		false		          11          Moving on to the operational updates.  I did --				false

		332						LN		13		12		false		          12      is Mr. Caseday present?  Or --				false

		333						LN		13		13		false		          13                        MR. CASEDAY:  Yes.				false

		334						LN		13		14		false		          14                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Go ahead.				false

		335						LN		13		15		false		          15                        MR. CASEDAY:  Okay.  Good				false

		336						LN		13		16		false		          16      afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.				false

		337						LN		13		17		false		          17      This is Jarred Caseday with EDP Renewables for the				false

		338						LN		13		18		false		          18      Kittitas Valley wind power project.				false

		339						LN		13		19		false		          19          On October 24, 2024, we received a complaint from				false

		340						LN		13		20		false		          20      a neighboring property regarding early-morning shadow				false

		341						LN		13		21		false		          21      flicker.  This was caused by one turbine.  We				false

		342						LN		13		22		false		          22      promptly addressed the issue, and we have received no				false

		343						LN		13		23		false		          23      further complaints.				false

		344						LN		13		24		false		          24                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		345						LN		13		25		false		          25                        MR. CASEDAY:  Thank you.				false

		346						PG		14		0		false		page 14				false

		347						LN		14		1		false		           1                        CHAIR DREW:  Wild Horse Wind Power				false

		348						LN		14		2		false		           2      Project.				false

		349						LN		14		3		false		           3                        MS. RANDOLPH:  This is Sara				false

		350						LN		14		4		false		           4      Randolph.  I didn't hear Jennifer on the line.				false

		351						LN		14		5		false		           5                        CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.				false

		352						LN		14		6		false		           6                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon.				false

		353						LN		14		7		false		           7      Thank you, Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.				false

		354						LN		14		8		false		           8      For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site				false

		355						LN		14		9		false		           9      specialist for Wild Horse.				false

		356						LN		14		10		false		          10          The facility update is provided in your packet.				false

		357						LN		14		11		false		          11      There were no nonroutine updates to report.				false

		358						LN		14		12		false		          12                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		359						LN		14		13		false		          13          Chehalis Generation Facility.  Mr. Smith.				false

		360						LN		14		14		false		          14                        MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		361						LN		14		15		false		          15      Drew, Council members, and EFSEC staff.  This is				false

		362						LN		14		16		false		          16      Jeremy Smith, the operations manager for Chehalis				false

		363						LN		14		17		false		          17      Generation Facility.				false

		364						LN		14		18		false		          18          There are no nonroutine items to report.				false

		365						LN		14		19		false		          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		366						LN		14		20		false		          20          Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Is Mr. Sherin online				false

		367						LN		14		21		false		          21      or Ms. Randolph?				false

		368						LN		14		22		false		          22                        MS. RANDOLPH:  I didn't hear Chris				false

		369						LN		14		23		false		          23      come on.				false

		370						LN		14		24		false		          24          Thank you again, Chair Drew, Council members, and				false

		371						LN		14		25		false		          25      staff.  For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site				false

		372						PG		15		0		false		page 15				false

		373						LN		15		1		false		           1      specialist for Grays Harbor.				false

		374						LN		15		2		false		           2          The facility update is provided in your packet.				false

		375						LN		15		3		false		           3      There are no updates to report at this time.				false

		376						LN		15		4		false		           4                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		377						LN		15		5		false		           5          Columbia Solar.  Mr. Cushing.				false

		378						LN		15		6		false		           6                        MR. CUSHING:  Good afternoon.				false

		379						LN		15		7		false		           7      Thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC staff.  This is				false

		380						LN		15		8		false		           8      Thomas Cushing for Columbia Solar.				false

		381						LN		15		9		false		           9          There are no nonroutine updates to report.				false

		382						LN		15		10		false		          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		383						LN		15		11		false		          11          Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1 and 4.				false

		384						LN		15		12		false		          12      Mr. Mehinagic.				false

		385						LN		15		13		false		          13                        MR. MEHINAGIC:  Good afternoon,				false

		386						LN		15		14		false		          14      Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the				false

		387						LN		15		15		false		          15      record, this is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for				false

		388						LN		15		16		false		          16      Energy Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and				false

		389						LN		15		17		false		          17      Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.				false

		390						LN		15		18		false		          18          During the week of October 28th, the Washington				false

		391						LN		15		19		false		          19      State Fire Marshal conducted an inspection of				false

		392						LN		15		20		false		          20      Columbia Generating Station non-power block buildings				false

		393						LN		15		21		false		          21      and the Industrial Development Complex.  Several				false

		394						LN		15		22		false		          22      actions were identified in the inspection report.  A				false

		395						LN		15		23		false		          23      reinspection to verify open actions has -- have been				false

		396						LN		15		24		false		          24      resolved will occur in approximately 60 to 90 days.				false

		397						LN		15		25		false		          25          On October 30th, the Washington State Department				false

		398						PG		16		0		false		page 16				false

		399						LN		16		1		false		           1      of Ecology conducted a synthetic minor air permit				false

		400						LN		16		2		false		           2      inspection at Columbia Generating Station.  The				false

		401						LN		16		3		false		           3      purpose of the inspection was to assess the station's				false

		402						LN		16		4		false		           4      compliance with EFSEC Order No. 873, and that order				false

		403						LN		16		5		false		           5      is to operate multiple diesel-fired combustion units				false

		404						LN		16		6		false		           6      to provide steam and emergency power.				false

		405						LN		16		7		false		           7          The inspectors conducted a visual inspection /				false

		406						LN		16		8		false		           8      walk-down of Diesel Generator 5; Diesel Generators 1,				false

		407						LN		16		9		false		           9      2, and 3; and auxiliary boiler inside the				false

		408						LN		16		10		false		          10      radiologically controlled area.  The inspectors noted				false

		409						LN		16		11		false		          11      the run times -- run time readings on the Diesel				false

		410						LN		16		12		false		          12      Generators 1, 2, 3, and 5.  No deficiencies were				false

		411						LN		16		13		false		          13      noted by Ecology during the walk-down and exit				false

		412						LN		16		14		false		          14      meetings.				false

		413						LN		16		15		false		          15          In addition to the above inspections, Ecology and				false

		414						LN		16		16		false		          16      EFSEC conducted an inspection of the Industrial				false

		415						LN		16		17		false		          17      Development Complex water treatment facility;				false

		416						LN		16		18		false		          18      specifically, the backwash water which makes its way				false

		417						LN		16		19		false		          19      to the sanitary waste treatment facility.  Energy				false

		418						LN		16		20		false		          20      Northwest gave the inspectors a high-level overview				false

		419						LN		16		21		false		          21      of the water treatment process and observed the				false

		420						LN		16		22		false		          22      backwash water exiting the water treatment facility.				false

		421						LN		16		23		false		          23      No deficiencies were noted by Ecology or EFSEC during				false

		422						LN		16		24		false		          24      our discussions.				false

		423						LN		16		25		false		          25          That is all I have.				false

		424						PG		17		0		false		page 17				false

		425						LN		17		1		false		           1                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		426						LN		17		2		false		           2          Are there any questions from Council members?				false

		427						LN		17		3		false		           3          Thank you for your report.				false

		428						LN		17		4		false		           4          Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar.  Mr. Crist.				false

		429						LN		17		5		false		           5                        MR. CRIST:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		430						LN		17		6		false		           6      Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.  So, for the record,				false

		431						LN		17		7		false		           7      this is Jacob Crist, senior project manager on behalf				false

		432						LN		17		8		false		           8      of Brookfield Renewable U.S., also accompanied by				false

		433						LN		17		9		false		           9      Nelson, who is our director of asset management from				false

		434						LN		17		10		false		          10      the operations team.  He is on the call today.				false

		435						LN		17		11		false		          11          For a construction status:  So we remain on -- on				false

		436						LN		17		12		false		          12      schedule with our contractual schedule.				false

		437						LN		17		13		false		          13          Some up- -- upcoming milestones that we're				false

		438						LN		17		14		false		          14      tracking:  The biggest milestone is the earliest				false

		439						LN		17		15		false		          15      possible COD date and utility sign-off date, which is				false

		440						LN		17		16		false		          16      December 13th of this year, so -- and then targeting				false

		441						LN		17		17		false		          17      substantial completion shortly after, with a capacity				false

		442						LN		17		18		false		          18      test scheduled for early January of '25 and then an				false

		443						LN		17		19		false		          19      availability testing period which would be scheduled				false

		444						LN		17		20		false		          20      for sometime in late December.				false

		445						LN		17		21		false		          21          So we did -- the current project early COD that				false

		446						LN		17		22		false		          22      we were tracking is delayed due to some inverter				false

		447						LN		17		23		false		          23      issue that -- that PCL is currently working through.				false

		448						LN		17		24		false		          24          From the O & M perspective, we did receive the				false

		449						LN		17		25		false		          25      O & M site certificate deliverables, or we did				false

		450						PG		18		0		false		page 18				false

		451						LN		18		1		false		           1      receive the approval from EFSEC for the O & M site				false

		452						LN		18		2		false		           2      certificate deliverables, so we do appreciate the				false

		453						LN		18		3		false		           3      EFSEC -- all EFSEC staff members that had -- had a				false

		454						LN		18		4		false		           4      part in that expedited review process and getting				false

		455						LN		18		5		false		           5      those to us.				false

		456						LN		18		6		false		           6          No discharge to report on-site for the month of				false

		457						LN		18		7		false		           7      October.  Frequent monitoring is still occurring with				false

		458						LN		18		8		false		           8      WSP.  No findings were reported in October from WSP.				false

		459						LN		18		9		false		           9          And then John Barnes was on-site for a SWPPP				false

		460						LN		18		10		false		          10      inspection last month.  We did provide a flood action				false

		461						LN		18		11		false		          11      plan, developed and provided for operational use, if				false

		462						LN		18		12		false		          12      needed, per John Barnes' request.				false

		463						LN		18		13		false		          13          And then I did want to again mention Nelson is				false

		464						LN		18		14		false		          14      the asset manager for our operations team.  He'll				false

		465						LN		18		15		false		          15      be -- we've -- we've had a discussion, and he will be				false

		466						LN		18		16		false		          16      providing the operational updates likely starting in				false

		467						LN		18		17		false		          17      January of 2025.				false

		468						LN		18		18		false		          18                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		469						LN		18		19		false		          19                        MR. CRIST:  Thank you.  Any				false

		470						LN		18		20		false		          20      questions?				false

		471						LN		18		21		false		          21                        CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?				false

		472						LN		18		22		false		          22          Thank you.  And congratulations on your continued				false

		473						LN		18		23		false		          23      road towards making the site complete and ready to				false

		474						LN		18		24		false		          24      start up with the utility, and we look forward to				false

		475						LN		18		25		false		          25      hearing that next update in December.				false

		476						PG		19		0		false		page 19				false

		477						LN		19		1		false		           1                        MR. CRIST:  Yes.  Thank you.				false

		478						LN		19		2		false		           2                        CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to High Top				false

		479						LN		19		3		false		           3      and Ostrea.  Sara Randolph.				false

		480						LN		19		4		false		           4                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you again,				false

		481						LN		19		5		false		           5      Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the				false

		482						LN		19		6		false		           6      record, this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for				false

		483						LN		19		7		false		           7      Ostrea.				false

		484						LN		19		8		false		           8          Last month, EFSEC issued the construction				false

		485						LN		19		9		false		           9      stormwater general permit, or the CSWGP, letter of				false

		486						LN		19		10		false		          10      coverage under the Department of Ecology general				false

		487						LN		19		11		false		          11      permit.  There were no substantive comments to the				false

		488						LN		19		12		false		          12      close of the comment period, which was October 19th.				false

		489						LN		19		13		false		          13      EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and review				false

		490						LN		19		14		false		          14      documents being sent by the certificate holder for				false

		491						LN		19		15		false		          15      pre-construction plans.				false

		492						LN		19		16		false		          16          We have no other updates at this time.				false

		493						LN		19		17		false		          17                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		494						LN		19		18		false		          18          Horse Heaven wind project:  Project update.  Amy				false

		495						LN		19		19		false		          19      Moon.				false

		496						LN		19		20		false		          20                        MS. MOON:  Good afternoon, Council				false

		497						LN		19		21		false		          21      Chair Drew and EFSEC Council members.  For the				false

		498						LN		19		22		false		          22      record, this is Amy Moon reporting on the Horse				false

		499						LN		19		23		false		          23      Heaven wind project.				false

		500						LN		19		24		false		          24          On October 18th of 2024, EFSEC received the				false

		501						LN		19		25		false		          25      governor's final decision and signed site				false

		502						PG		20		0		false		page 20				false

		503						LN		20		1		false		           1      certification agreement, or SCA, for the Horse Heaven				false

		504						LN		20		2		false		           2      wind project.  EFSEC notified the parties of the				false

		505						LN		20		3		false		           3      receipt of the signed SCA signed by the governor and				false

		506						LN		20		4		false		           4      the subsequent appeal period.  This appeal period				false

		507						LN		20		5		false		           5      ends on December 2nd.				false

		508						LN		20		6		false		           6          Does the Council have any questions?				false

		509						LN		20		7		false		           7                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any				false

		510						LN		20		8		false		           8      questions from Council members?				false

		511						LN		20		9		false		           9          Thank you.				false

		512						LN		20		10		false		          10          Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project:  Project				false

		513						LN		20		11		false		          11      update.  Mr. Caputo.				false

		514						LN		20		12		false		          12                        MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew				false

		515						LN		20		13		false		          13      and Council members.				false

		516						LN		20		14		false		          14          Following the October 16 Council meeting, staff				false

		517						LN		20		15		false		          15      and the assistant attorney generals have worked to				false

		518						LN		20		16		false		          16      prepare a recommendation report to the governor for				false

		519						LN		20		17		false		          17      the Wautoma Solar energy project recommending				false

		520						LN		20		18		false		          18      approval as well as an accompanying draft site				false

		521						LN		20		19		false		          19      certification agreement, both of which can be found				false

		522						LN		20		20		false		          20      in your Council packets.  These documents were				false

		523						LN		20		21		false		          21      provided to Council for review ahead of today's				false

		524						LN		20		22		false		          22      meeting, were also posted for public comment.  One				false

		525						LN		20		23		false		          23      comment letter was received from the developer.				false

		526						LN		20		24		false		          24          In response to the comment letter, staff proposed				false

		527						LN		20		25		false		          25      the following edits to the documents.				false

		528						PG		21		0		false		page 21				false

		529						LN		21		1		false		           1          To the draft site certification agreement:  In				false

		530						LN		21		2		false		           2      Article I.C.9, on Page 4, please correct the name of				false

		531						LN		21		3		false		           3      the substation from "Black Rock Substation" to				false

		532						LN		21		4		false		           4      "Wautoma BPA Substation."				false

		533						LN		21		5		false		           5          And Article III.C, on Page 7, correct the				false

		534						LN		21		6		false		           6      spelling of the developer's contact address from				false

		535						LN		21		7		false		           7      "Noble," N-o-b-l-e, to "Nobel," N-o-b-e-l.				false

		536						LN		21		8		false		           8          To the draft recommendation:				false

		537						LN		21		9		false		           9          In Section II.D, on Page 5, please correct the				false

		538						LN		21		10		false		          10      application date from June 8 to June 9.				false

		539						LN		21		11		false		          11          In Footnote 8, on Page 7, please correct the				false

		540						LN		21		12		false		          12      spelling of "Yakama" from Y-a-k-i-m-a to Y-a-k-a-m-a				false

		541						LN		21		13		false		          13      to reflect the correct spelling in reference to the				false

		542						LN		21		14		false		          14      Yakama Nation.				false

		543						LN		21		15		false		          15          Staff requests the Council discuss and vote on				false

		544						LN		21		16		false		          16      whether to approve the draft documents with the				false

		545						LN		21		17		false		          17      proposed amendments.				false

		546						LN		21		18		false		          18          May I answer any questions?				false

		547						LN		21		19		false		          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any				false

		548						LN		21		20		false		          20      questions for Mr. Caputo?				false

		549						LN		21		21		false		          21          So I do -- we did have an adjudicative				false

		550						LN		21		22		false		          22      deliberation session just prior to this meeting, and				false

		551						LN		21		23		false		          23      I do want to report to all at this meeting that the				false

		552						LN		21		24		false		          24      Council voted unanimously in favor of the				false

		553						LN		21		25		false		          25      adjudicative order to preempt the local zoning for				false

		554						PG		22		0		false		page 22				false

		555						LN		22		1		false		           1      the Wautoma project.  That order will be posted with				false

		556						LN		22		2		false		           2      the documents today or as soon as we get the final				false

		557						LN		22		3		false		           3      signatures on the document.				false

		558						LN		22		4		false		           4          Moving on to the Council -- the recommendation to				false

		559						LN		22		5		false		           5      the governor and the site certification agreement.				false

		560						LN		22		6		false		           6          For the staff, have those minor edits that came				false

		561						LN		22		7		false		           7      in been added to the SCA, the site certification				false

		562						LN		22		8		false		           8      agreement?				false

		563						LN		22		9		false		           9                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Yes, Chair Drew,				false

		564						LN		22		10		false		          10      we have provided the Council a red-lined copy that				false

		565						LN		22		11		false		          11      reflects those four edits, two in each document.				false

		566						LN		22		12		false		          12                        CHAIR DREW:  Okay.				false

		567						LN		22		13		false		          13          So, Council members, we have discussed in				false

		568						LN		22		14		false		          14      previous meetings the recommendation to the governor				false

		569						LN		22		15		false		          15      as well as you've had a chance to review that and the				false

		570						LN		22		16		false		          16      site certification agreement.  And I would ask if				false

		571						LN		22		17		false		          17      there is a motion to approve that recommendation and				false

		572						LN		22		18		false		          18      site certification agreement.				false

		573						LN		22		19		false		          19                        MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  I move to				false

		574						LN		22		20		false		          20      approve the recommendation and the SCA.				false

		575						LN		22		21		false		          21                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		576						LN		22		22		false		          22          Second?				false

		577						LN		22		23		false		          23                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.				false

		578						LN		22		24		false		          24      Second.				false

		579						LN		22		25		false		          25                        CHAIR DREW:  So that brings it up				false

		580						PG		23		0		false		page 23				false

		581						LN		23		1		false		           1      for discussion.				false

		582						LN		23		2		false		           2          Do Council members have a discussion of this				false

		583						LN		23		3		false		           3      motion item?				false

		584						LN		23		4		false		           4          I can start off the discussion by saying that, as				false

		585						LN		23		5		false		           5      we deliberated on the Wautoma project, it was clear				false

		586						LN		23		6		false		           6      to the Council that this project had much positive,				false

		587						LN		23		7		false		           7      in that it's in a secluded location.  It -- the				false

		588						LN		23		8		false		           8      applicant worked very hard with staff and any				false

		589						LN		23		9		false		           9      interested parties to address concerns that came				false

		590						LN		23		10		false		          10      forward from the project.				false

		591						LN		23		11		false		          11          We held the adjudication and then the hearing on				false

		592						LN		23		12		false		          12      the adjudication to see if others had comments or				false

		593						LN		23		13		false		          13      concerns.  Overall, this is a very well-put-together				false

		594						LN		23		14		false		          14      application.  The work by the staff and the work by				false

		595						LN		23		15		false		          15      the applicant has been excellent in addressing all				false

		596						LN		23		16		false		          16      concerns.  So I encourage a "yes" vote on this				false

		597						LN		23		17		false		          17      recommendation to the governor.				false

		598						LN		23		18		false		          18          Are there other comments?				false

		599						LN		23		19		false		          19          I would -- I would also add that the property				false

		600						LN		23		20		false		          20      owners have expressed that this action by the Council				false

		601						LN		23		21		false		          21      will allow them to continue to farm with their				false

		602						LN		23		22		false		          22      declining well and also to gain income from the				false

		603						LN		23		23		false		          23      leasing of their property for this project.  So				false

		604						LN		23		24		false		          24      appreciate the input from -- from them as well.				false

		605						LN		23		25		false		          25          If there is nothing further, I would ask				false

		606						PG		24		0		false		page 24				false

		607						LN		24		1		false		           1      Ms. Grantham to call the roll for approval of the				false

		608						LN		24		2		false		           2      recommendation to the governor and the site				false

		609						LN		24		3		false		           3      certification agreement.				false

		610						LN		24		4		false		           4                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly.				false

		611						LN		24		5		false		           5          Chair Drew.				false

		612						LN		24		6		false		           6                        CHAIR DREW:  Aye.				false

		613						LN		24		7		false		           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of --				false

		614						LN		24		8		false		           8      excuse me.  Department of Commerce, Elizabeth				false

		615						LN		24		9		false		           9      Osborne.				false

		616						LN		24		10		false		          10                        MS. OSBORNE:  Aye.				false

		617						LN		24		11		false		          11                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of				false

		618						LN		24		12		false		          12      Ecology, Eli Levitt.				false

		619						LN		24		13		false		          13                        MR. LEVITT:  Aye.				false

		620						LN		24		14		false		          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish				false

		621						LN		24		15		false		          15      and Wildlife, Mike Livingston.				false

		622						LN		24		16		false		          16                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Aye.				false

		623						LN		24		17		false		          17                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of				false

		624						LN		24		18		false		          18      Natural Resources, Lenny Young.				false

		625						LN		24		19		false		          19                        MR. YOUNG:  Aye.				false

		626						LN		24		20		false		          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities &				false

		627						LN		24		21		false		          21      Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.				false

		628						LN		24		22		false		          22                        MS. BREWSTER:  Aye.				false

		629						LN		24		23		false		          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And for the Wautoma				false

		630						LN		24		24		false		          24      Solar project:  For Benton County, Dave Sharp.				false

		631						LN		24		25		false		          25                        MR. SHARP:  Aye.				false

		632						PG		25		0		false		page 25				false

		633						LN		25		1		false		           1                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And for the				false

		634						LN		25		2		false		           2      Washington State Department of Transportation, Paul				false

		635						LN		25		3		false		           3      Gonseth.				false

		636						LN		25		4		false		           4                        MR. GONSETH:  Aye.				false

		637						LN		25		5		false		           5                        CHAIR DREW:  The vote to approve				false

		638						LN		25		6		false		           6      this project is unanimous.  Thank you very much for				false

		639						LN		25		7		false		           7      all your work, Council members, and thank you very				false

		640						LN		25		8		false		           8      much for the work to move this application through				false

		641						LN		25		9		false		           9      our process to our staff.				false

		642						LN		25		10		false		          10          With that, we'll move on to the Hop Hill Solar				false

		643						LN		25		11		false		          11      Project update.  Mr. Barnes.  Something was going to				false

		644						LN		25		12		false		          12      get me.				false

		645						LN		25		13		false		          13                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew				false

		646						LN		25		14		false		          14      and Council members.  For the record, this is John				false

		647						LN		25		15		false		          15      Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.				false

		648						LN		25		16		false		          16          Staff continue to review materials for the				false

		649						LN		25		17		false		          17      applicant -- from the applicant -- excuse me -- in				false

		650						LN		25		18		false		          18      coordination with our contracted agencies, our				false

		651						LN		25		19		false		          19      consultant, and tribal governments.				false

		652						LN		25		20		false		          20          On November 12th, 2024, EFSEC received from the				false

		653						LN		25		21		false		          21      applicant a request to extend the 12-month				false

		654						LN		25		22		false		          22      application review period.  The 12 -- the review				false

		655						LN		25		23		false		          23      deadline for the Hop Hill application is set to				false

		656						LN		25		24		false		          24      expire on December 22nd of 2024.  The 12-month				false

		657						LN		25		25		false		          25      extension would allow the applicant to complete the				false

		658						PG		26		0		false		page 26				false

		659						LN		26		1		false		           1      additional studies and allow EFSEC to be able to				false

		660						LN		26		2		false		           2      issue a SEPA threshold determination.				false

		661						LN		26		3		false		           3          The applicant has drafted an application review				false

		662						LN		26		4		false		           4      extension letter that has been placed on the EFSEC				false

		663						LN		26		5		false		           5      website for public review comments ahead of this				false

		664						LN		26		6		false		           6      meeting.  No comments were received.  If granted, the				false

		665						LN		26		7		false		           7      new application deadline would be December 22nd,				false

		666						LN		26		8		false		           8      2025.				false

		667						LN		26		9		false		           9          At this time, staff recommends the Council vote				false

		668						LN		26		10		false		          10      to approve the application extension now in front of				false

		669						LN		26		11		false		          11      you.				false

		670						LN		26		12		false		          12          Are there any questions?				false

		671						LN		26		13		false		          13                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any				false

		672						LN		26		14		false		          14      questions from Council members?				false

		673						LN		26		15		false		          15          Hearing none.				false

		674						LN		26		16		false		          16          Is there a motion to approve the extension				false

		675						LN		26		17		false		          17      request for Hop Hill Solar?				false

		676						LN		26		18		false		          18                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  So				false

		677						LN		26		19		false		          19      moved.				false

		678						LN		26		20		false		          20                        CHAIR DREW:  Second?				false

		679						LN		26		21		false		          21                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.				false

		680						LN		26		22		false		          22      Second.				false

		681						LN		26		23		false		          23                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		682						LN		26		24		false		          24      Discussion?				false

		683						LN		26		25		false		          25          All those in favor, please say "aye."				false

		684						PG		27		0		false		page 27				false

		685						LN		27		1		false		           1                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.				false

		686						LN		27		2		false		           2                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		687						LN		27		3		false		           3          Motion carries.  Thank you.				false

		688						LN		27		4		false		           4          Moving on to Carriger Solar project update.				false

		689						LN		27		5		false		           5      Ms. Snarski.				false

		690						LN		27		6		false		           6                        MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew				false

		691						LN		27		7		false		           7      and Council members.  For the record, this is Joanne				false

		692						LN		27		8		false		           8      Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.				false

		693						LN		27		9		false		           9          On November 8th, we received concurrence from				false

		694						LN		27		10		false		          10      Ecology regarding the findings of the amended and				false

		695						LN		27		11		false		          11      revised wetlands and water bodies report.  It's dated				false
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           1                        BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,



           2      November 20, 2024, at 621 Woodland Square Loop



           3      Southeast, Lacey, Washington, at 1:31 p.m., the



           4      following Monthly Meeting of the Washington State



           5      Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council was held, to



           6      wit:



           7



           8                          <<<<<< >>>>>>



           9



          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon.  This



          11      is Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site



          12      Evaluation Council, calling our November meeting to



          13      order.



          14          Ms. Grantham, will you call the roll.



          15                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly, Chair



          16      Drew.



          17          Department of Commerce.



          18                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne,



          19      present.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          21      Ecology.



          22                        MR. LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, present.



          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish



          24      and Wildlife.



          25                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston,
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           1      present.



           2                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



           3      Natural Resources.



           4                        MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young, present.



           5                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities &



           6      Transportation Commission.



           7                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster,



           8      present.



           9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  For local government



          10      and optional State agencies:  For the Horse Heaven



          11      project:  Benton County, Ed Brost.



          12          I believe I saw Mr. Brost's phone number in the



          13      chat.



          14          Okay.  Wautoma Solar:  For Benton County, Dave



          15      Sharp.



          16          Washington State Department of Transportation,



          17      Paul Gonseth.



          18                        MR. GONSETH:  Paul Gonseth,



          19      present.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Hop Hill Solar:



          21      Benton County, Paul Krupin.



          22          Carriger Solar:  Klickitat County, Matt Chiles.



          23          Wallula Gap --



          24                        MR. CHILES:  Matt --



          25                        MS. GRANTHAM:  -- project:  For
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           1      Bent- -- oh.  Is that Matt Chiles?



           2          Mr. Chiles, was that you?



           3          Hearing none.  I will move on.



           4          Wallula Gap:  For Benton County, Adam Fyall.



           5          And then for Goldeneye BESS:  For Skagit County,



           6      Bobby [sic] Eckroth.



           7                        MR. ECKROTH:  Robby Eckroth,



           8      present.



           9                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



          10          Assistant attorney generals.  Jon Thompson.



          11                        MR. THOMPSON:  Present.



          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Zack Packer.



          13                        MR. PACKER:  Present.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And I know that we



          15      have a new assistant attorney general in.  There is a



          16      Talia, but I do not know how to pronounce your last



          17      name.



          18          Talia, are you present?



          19                        MR. THOMPSON:  She is not present.



          20      Talia Thuet.



          21                        MS. GRANTHAM:  "Thuet."  Perfect.



          22      Thank you.



          23          Administrative law judges.  Adam Torem.



          24          Laura Bradley.



          25          Dan Gerard.
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           1          Or Travis Dupree.



           2          For Council staff, I will call those anticipated



           3      to speak today.



           4          Sonia Bumpus.



           5                        MS. BUMPUS:  Present.



           6                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Ami Hafkemeyer.



           7                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Present.



           8                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.



           9                        MS. MOON:  Amy Moon, present.



          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.



          11                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Present.



          12                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.



          13                        MR. CAPUTO:  Present.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.



          15                        MR. BARNES:  Present.



          16                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.



          17                        MS. SNARSKI:  Present.



          18                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And Zia Ahmed.



          19          Operational updates.  Kittitas Valley wind



          20      project.



          21                        MR. CASEDAY:  Jarred Caseday,



          22      present.



          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind



          24      Power Project.



          25          Grays Harbor Energy Center.
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           1          Chehalis Generation Facility.



           2                        MR. SMITH:  Jeremy Smith, present.



           3                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating



           4      Station.



           5                        MR. MEHINAGIC:  Denis Mehinagic,



           6      present.



           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.



           8          And Goose Prairie Solar.



           9                        MR. CRIST:  Jacob Crist, present.



          10                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And do we have



          11      anyone present for the counsel for the environment?



          12                        MS. REYNEVELD:  Sarah Reyneveld and



          13      Yuriy Korol are present.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



          15          Chair, there is a quorum for all councils.  Thank



          16      you.



          17                        CHAIR DREW:  Would you call the



          18      names of the Council members that we did not hear



          19      from.  I think a couple of them are there online.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Will do.



          21          So I will circle back over to Wautoma Solar:  For



          22      Benton County, Dave Sharp.



          23                        MR. SHARP:  Dave Sharp just joined.



          24                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Thank you,



          25      Mr. Sharp.
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           1          Hop Hill Solar:  For Benton County, Paul Krupin.



           2          And then for Wallula Gap:  For Benton County,



           3      Adam Fyall.



           4          And I did mark Ed Brost present, but I want to



           5      make sure, if he is unmuted, for Benton County for



           6      Horse Heaven.



           7          That is everyone, Chair.



           8                        CHAIR DREW:  Okay.



           9                        MR. CUSHING:  This --



          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.  Somebody...



          11                        MR. CUSHING:  Apologies.



          12                        MR. BROST:  Yeah, this is --



          13                        MR. CUSHING:  Thomas Cushing --



          14                        MR. BROST:  -- Ed Brost.



          15                        MR. CUSHING:  -- present for --



          16      Thomas Cushing present for Columbia Solar.  I



          17      apologize.  My computer restarted in the middle of



          18      roll.



          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Understood.  Thank



          20      you.



          21                        MR. CUSHING:  Thank you.



          22                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you, all.  Yes,



          23      we've had a little bit of weather in our state,



          24      weather all the time, so appreciate everybody being



          25      online who can be today.
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           1          You have the proposed agenda in front of you.



           2      Council members, is there a motion to adopt the



           3      proposed agenda?



           4                        MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  So moved.



           5                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.



           6      Second.



           7                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           8          Any discussion?



           9          All those in favor of adopting the agenda, say



          10      "aye."



          11                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          12                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          13          The agenda's adopted.



          14          Moving on to the meeting minutes.  We have the



          15      October 16th monthly meeting minutes.



          16          Is there a motion to approve the monthly meeting



          17      minutes?



          18                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.



          19      So moved.



          20                        CHAIR DREW:  Is Michael --



          21                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth --



          22                        CHAIR DREW:  -- Living- --



          23                        MS. OSBORNE:  -- Osborne.



          24      (Unintelligible.)



          25                        CHAIR DREW:  Michael Livingston
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           1      moved it.  Elizabeth Osborne, second.



           2          Okay.  I did not find corrections to the October



           3      meeting minutes.



           4          Did anyone else find corrections?



           5          Hearing none.



           6          All those in favor of approving the October



           7      meeting minutes, please say "aye."



           8                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



           9                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          10          The meeting minutes are adopted.



          11          Moving on to the operational updates.  I did --



          12      is Mr. Caseday present?  Or --



          13                        MR. CASEDAY:  Yes.



          14                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Go ahead.



          15                        MR. CASEDAY:  Okay.  Good



          16      afternoon, Chair Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.



          17      This is Jarred Caseday with EDP Renewables for the



          18      Kittitas Valley wind power project.



          19          On October 24, 2024, we received a complaint from



          20      a neighboring property regarding early-morning shadow



          21      flicker.  This was caused by one turbine.  We



          22      promptly addressed the issue, and we have received no



          23      further complaints.



          24                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          25                        MR. CASEDAY:  Thank you.
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           1                        CHAIR DREW:  Wild Horse Wind Power



           2      Project.



           3                        MS. RANDOLPH:  This is Sara



           4      Randolph.  I didn't hear Jennifer on the line.



           5                        CHAIR DREW:  Go ahead.



           6                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon.



           7      Thank you, Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.



           8      For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site



           9      specialist for Wild Horse.



          10          The facility update is provided in your packet.



          11      There were no nonroutine updates to report.



          12                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          13          Chehalis Generation Facility.  Mr. Smith.



          14                        MR. SMITH:  Good afternoon, Chair



          15      Drew, Council members, and EFSEC staff.  This is



          16      Jeremy Smith, the operations manager for Chehalis



          17      Generation Facility.



          18          There are no nonroutine items to report.



          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          20          Grays Harbor Energy Center.  Is Mr. Sherin online



          21      or Ms. Randolph?



          22                        MS. RANDOLPH:  I didn't hear Chris



          23      come on.



          24          Thank you again, Chair Drew, Council members, and



          25      staff.  For the record, this is Sara Randolph, site
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           1      specialist for Grays Harbor.



           2          The facility update is provided in your packet.



           3      There are no updates to report at this time.



           4                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           5          Columbia Solar.  Mr. Cushing.



           6                        MR. CUSHING:  Good afternoon.



           7      Thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC staff.  This is



           8      Thomas Cushing for Columbia Solar.



           9          There are no nonroutine updates to report.



          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          11          Columbia Generating Station and WNP 1 and 4.



          12      Mr. Mehinagic.



          13                        MR. MEHINAGIC:  Good afternoon,



          14      Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the



          15      record, this is Denis Mehinagic providing updates for



          16      Energy Northwest, Columbia Generating Station, and



          17      Washington Nuclear Projects 1 and 4.



          18          During the week of October 28th, the Washington



          19      State Fire Marshal conducted an inspection of



          20      Columbia Generating Station non-power block buildings



          21      and the Industrial Development Complex.  Several



          22      actions were identified in the inspection report.  A



          23      reinspection to verify open actions has -- have been



          24      resolved will occur in approximately 60 to 90 days.



          25          On October 30th, the Washington State Department





                                                                      15

�







           1      of Ecology conducted a synthetic minor air permit



           2      inspection at Columbia Generating Station.  The



           3      purpose of the inspection was to assess the station's



           4      compliance with EFSEC Order No. 873, and that order



           5      is to operate multiple diesel-fired combustion units



           6      to provide steam and emergency power.



           7          The inspectors conducted a visual inspection /



           8      walk-down of Diesel Generator 5; Diesel Generators 1,



           9      2, and 3; and auxiliary boiler inside the



          10      radiologically controlled area.  The inspectors noted



          11      the run times -- run time readings on the Diesel



          12      Generators 1, 2, 3, and 5.  No deficiencies were



          13      noted by Ecology during the walk-down and exit



          14      meetings.



          15          In addition to the above inspections, Ecology and



          16      EFSEC conducted an inspection of the Industrial



          17      Development Complex water treatment facility;



          18      specifically, the backwash water which makes its way



          19      to the sanitary waste treatment facility.  Energy



          20      Northwest gave the inspectors a high-level overview



          21      of the water treatment process and observed the



          22      backwash water exiting the water treatment facility.



          23      No deficiencies were noted by Ecology or EFSEC during



          24      our discussions.



          25          That is all I have.
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           1                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           2          Are there any questions from Council members?



           3          Thank you for your report.



           4          Moving on to Goose Prairie Solar.  Mr. Crist.



           5                        MR. CRIST:  Good afternoon, Chair



           6      Drew, EFSEC Council, and staff.  So, for the record,



           7      this is Jacob Crist, senior project manager on behalf



           8      of Brookfield Renewable U.S., also accompanied by



           9      Nelson, who is our director of asset management from



          10      the operations team.  He is on the call today.



          11          For a construction status:  So we remain on -- on



          12      schedule with our contractual schedule.



          13          Some up- -- upcoming milestones that we're



          14      tracking:  The biggest milestone is the earliest



          15      possible COD date and utility sign-off date, which is



          16      December 13th of this year, so -- and then targeting



          17      substantial completion shortly after, with a capacity



          18      test scheduled for early January of '25 and then an



          19      availability testing period which would be scheduled



          20      for sometime in late December.



          21          So we did -- the current project early COD that



          22      we were tracking is delayed due to some inverter



          23      issue that -- that PCL is currently working through.



          24          From the O & M perspective, we did receive the



          25      O & M site certificate deliverables, or we did
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           1      receive the approval from EFSEC for the O & M site



           2      certificate deliverables, so we do appreciate the



           3      EFSEC -- all EFSEC staff members that had -- had a



           4      part in that expedited review process and getting



           5      those to us.



           6          No discharge to report on-site for the month of



           7      October.  Frequent monitoring is still occurring with



           8      WSP.  No findings were reported in October from WSP.



           9          And then John Barnes was on-site for a SWPPP



          10      inspection last month.  We did provide a flood action



          11      plan, developed and provided for operational use, if



          12      needed, per John Barnes' request.



          13          And then I did want to again mention Nelson is



          14      the asset manager for our operations team.  He'll



          15      be -- we've -- we've had a discussion, and he will be



          16      providing the operational updates likely starting in



          17      January of 2025.



          18                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          19                        MR. CRIST:  Thank you.  Any



          20      questions?



          21                        CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?



          22          Thank you.  And congratulations on your continued



          23      road towards making the site complete and ready to



          24      start up with the utility, and we look forward to



          25      hearing that next update in December.
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           1                        MR. CRIST:  Yes.  Thank you.



           2                        CHAIR DREW:  Moving on to High Top



           3      and Ostrea.  Sara Randolph.



           4                        MS. RANDOLPH:  Thank you again,



           5      Chair Drew, Council members, and staff.  For the



           6      record, this is Sara Randolph, site specialist for



           7      Ostrea.



           8          Last month, EFSEC issued the construction



           9      stormwater general permit, or the CSWGP, letter of



          10      coverage under the Department of Ecology general



          11      permit.  There were no substantive comments to the



          12      close of the comment period, which was October 19th.



          13      EFSEC staff are continuing to receive and review



          14      documents being sent by the certificate holder for



          15      pre-construction plans.



          16          We have no other updates at this time.



          17                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          18          Horse Heaven wind project:  Project update.  Amy



          19      Moon.



          20                        MS. MOON:  Good afternoon, Council



          21      Chair Drew and EFSEC Council members.  For the



          22      record, this is Amy Moon reporting on the Horse



          23      Heaven wind project.



          24          On October 18th of 2024, EFSEC received the



          25      governor's final decision and signed site
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           1      certification agreement, or SCA, for the Horse Heaven



           2      wind project.  EFSEC notified the parties of the



           3      receipt of the signed SCA signed by the governor and



           4      the subsequent appeal period.  This appeal period



           5      ends on December 2nd.



           6          Does the Council have any questions?



           7                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any



           8      questions from Council members?



           9          Thank you.



          10          Moving on to the Wautoma Solar Project:  Project



          11      update.  Mr. Caputo.



          12                        MR. CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew



          13      and Council members.



          14          Following the October 16 Council meeting, staff



          15      and the assistant attorney generals have worked to



          16      prepare a recommendation report to the governor for



          17      the Wautoma Solar energy project recommending



          18      approval as well as an accompanying draft site



          19      certification agreement, both of which can be found



          20      in your Council packets.  These documents were



          21      provided to Council for review ahead of today's



          22      meeting, were also posted for public comment.  One



          23      comment letter was received from the developer.



          24          In response to the comment letter, staff proposed



          25      the following edits to the documents.
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           1          To the draft site certification agreement:  In



           2      Article I.C.9, on Page 4, please correct the name of



           3      the substation from "Black Rock Substation" to



           4      "Wautoma BPA Substation."



           5          And Article III.C, on Page 7, correct the



           6      spelling of the developer's contact address from



           7      "Noble," N-o-b-l-e, to "Nobel," N-o-b-e-l.



           8          To the draft recommendation:



           9          In Section II.D, on Page 5, please correct the



          10      application date from June 8 to June 9.



          11          In Footnote 8, on Page 7, please correct the



          12      spelling of "Yakama" from Y-a-k-i-m-a to Y-a-k-a-m-a



          13      to reflect the correct spelling in reference to the



          14      Yakama Nation.



          15          Staff requests the Council discuss and vote on



          16      whether to approve the draft documents with the



          17      proposed amendments.



          18          May I answer any questions?



          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any



          20      questions for Mr. Caputo?



          21          So I do -- we did have an adjudicative



          22      deliberation session just prior to this meeting, and



          23      I do want to report to all at this meeting that the



          24      Council voted unanimously in favor of the



          25      adjudicative order to preempt the local zoning for
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           1      the Wautoma project.  That order will be posted with



           2      the documents today or as soon as we get the final



           3      signatures on the document.



           4          Moving on to the Council -- the recommendation to



           5      the governor and the site certification agreement.



           6          For the staff, have those minor edits that came



           7      in been added to the SCA, the site certification



           8      agreement?



           9                        MS. HAFKEMEYER:  Yes, Chair Drew,



          10      we have provided the Council a red-lined copy that



          11      reflects those four edits, two in each document.



          12                        CHAIR DREW:  Okay.



          13          So, Council members, we have discussed in



          14      previous meetings the recommendation to the governor



          15      as well as you've had a chance to review that and the



          16      site certification agreement.  And I would ask if



          17      there is a motion to approve that recommendation and



          18      site certification agreement.



          19                        MR. YOUNG:  Lenny Young.  I move to



          20      approve the recommendation and the SCA.



          21                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          22          Second?



          23                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.



          24      Second.



          25                        CHAIR DREW:  So that brings it up
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           1      for discussion.



           2          Do Council members have a discussion of this



           3      motion item?



           4          I can start off the discussion by saying that, as



           5      we deliberated on the Wautoma project, it was clear



           6      to the Council that this project had much positive,



           7      in that it's in a secluded location.  It -- the



           8      applicant worked very hard with staff and any



           9      interested parties to address concerns that came



          10      forward from the project.



          11          We held the adjudication and then the hearing on



          12      the adjudication to see if others had comments or



          13      concerns.  Overall, this is a very well-put-together



          14      application.  The work by the staff and the work by



          15      the applicant has been excellent in addressing all



          16      concerns.  So I encourage a "yes" vote on this



          17      recommendation to the governor.



          18          Are there other comments?



          19          I would -- I would also add that the property



          20      owners have expressed that this action by the Council



          21      will allow them to continue to farm with their



          22      declining well and also to gain income from the



          23      leasing of their property for this project.  So



          24      appreciate the input from -- from them as well.



          25          If there is nothing further, I would ask
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           1      Ms. Grantham to call the roll for approval of the



           2      recommendation to the governor and the site



           3      certification agreement.



           4                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Certainly.



           5          Chair Drew.



           6                        CHAIR DREW:  Aye.



           7                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of --



           8      excuse me.  Department of Commerce, Elizabeth



           9      Osborne.



          10                        MS. OSBORNE:  Aye.



          11                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          12      Ecology, Eli Levitt.



          13                        MR. LEVITT:  Aye.



          14                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish



          15      and Wildlife, Mike Livingston.



          16                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Aye.



          17                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Department of



          18      Natural Resources, Lenny Young.



          19                        MR. YOUNG:  Aye.



          20                        MS. GRANTHAM:  Utilities &



          21      Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.



          22                        MS. BREWSTER:  Aye.



          23                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And for the Wautoma



          24      Solar project:  For Benton County, Dave Sharp.



          25                        MR. SHARP:  Aye.
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           1                        MS. GRANTHAM:  And for the



           2      Washington State Department of Transportation, Paul



           3      Gonseth.



           4                        MR. GONSETH:  Aye.



           5                        CHAIR DREW:  The vote to approve



           6      this project is unanimous.  Thank you very much for



           7      all your work, Council members, and thank you very



           8      much for the work to move this application through



           9      our process to our staff.



          10          With that, we'll move on to the Hop Hill Solar



          11      Project update.  Mr. Barnes.  Something was going to



          12      get me.



          13                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew



          14      and Council members.  For the record, this is John



          15      Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Hop Hill application.



          16          Staff continue to review materials for the



          17      applicant -- from the applicant -- excuse me -- in



          18      coordination with our contracted agencies, our



          19      consultant, and tribal governments.



          20          On November 12th, 2024, EFSEC received from the



          21      applicant a request to extend the 12-month



          22      application review period.  The 12 -- the review



          23      deadline for the Hop Hill application is set to



          24      expire on December 22nd of 2024.  The 12-month



          25      extension would allow the applicant to complete the
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           1      additional studies and allow EFSEC to be able to



           2      issue a SEPA threshold determination.



           3          The applicant has drafted an application review



           4      extension letter that has been placed on the EFSEC



           5      website for public review comments ahead of this



           6      meeting.  No comments were received.  If granted, the



           7      new application deadline would be December 22nd,



           8      2025.



           9          At this time, staff recommends the Council vote



          10      to approve the application extension now in front of



          11      you.



          12          Are there any questions?



          13                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any



          14      questions from Council members?



          15          Hearing none.



          16          Is there a motion to approve the extension



          17      request for Hop Hill Solar?



          18                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.  So



          19      moved.



          20                        CHAIR DREW:  Second?



          21                        MS. OSBORNE:  Elizabeth Osborne.



          22      Second.



          23                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          24      Discussion?



          25          All those in favor, please say "aye."
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           1                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



           2                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



           3          Motion carries.  Thank you.



           4          Moving on to Carriger Solar project update.



           5      Ms. Snarski.



           6                        MS. SNARSKI:  Thank you, Chair Drew



           7      and Council members.  For the record, this is Joanne



           8      Snarski, the siting specialist for Carriger Solar.



           9          On November 8th, we received concurrence from



          10      Ecology regarding the findings of the amended and



          11      revised wetlands and water bodies report.  It's dated



          12      October 2024.



          13          Also at the end of October, we received feedback



          14      from the Washington State Department of



          15      Transportation on the applicant's scoping letter for



          16      the traffic impact analysis.  With that, Cypress



          17      Creek Renewables is moving forward on the development



          18      of their traffic impact analysis.



          19                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          20                        MS. SNARSKI:  Any questions?



          21                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you for your



          22      report.



          23          Moving on to the Wallula Gap project update.



          24      Mr. Barnes.



          25                        MR. BARNES:  Thank you, Chair Drew
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           1      and Council members.  For the record, this is John



           2      Barnes, EFSEC staff, for the Wallula Gap application.



           3          On April 23rd, 2024, EFSEC held a land-use



           4      consistency hearing at the Kennewick Valley Grange,



           5      in Benton County, for the Wallula Gap project.



           6      Following that hearing, a land-use order of



           7      inconsistency for the application was developed in



           8      coordination with the administrative law judge, our



           9      assistant attorney generals, and staff.  Our AAG is



          10      available on the call if there are any questions.



          11          The land-use order was placed on the EFSEC



          12      website for public review and comments ahead of this



          13      meeting.  No comments were received.



          14          At this time, staff recommend the Council vote to



          15      approve the land-use order now in front of you.



          16          Are there any questions?



          17                        CHAIR DREW:  Are there any



          18      questions?



          19          So, again, this is an order finding that the



          20      project is inconsistent with the local land-use --



          21      with the land use.  Leave it as a period there.



          22      Sorry about that.  Words fail me.



          23          So you have had a chance to review this land-use



          24      order.



          25          Is there a motion to approve the land-use order?
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           1                        MR. LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston.



           2      So moved.



           3                        CHAIR DREW:  Second?



           4                        MS. BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster.



           5      Second.



           6                        CHAIR DREW:  Discussion?



           7          All those in favor of approving the land-use



           8      order for the Wallula Gap project, please say "aye."



           9                        MULTIPLE SPEAKERS:  Aye.



          10                        CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



          11          Motion is carried.  Thank you.



          12          We now have a project update for Goldeneye BESS.



          13      Mr. Ahmed.



          14                        MR. CAPUTO:  Chair Drew and



          15      Council, for the record, this is Lance Caputo



          16      reporting for Zia Ahmed, siting specialist for the



          17      Goldeneye battery energy storage project.



          18          We are currently finalizing a second data request



          19      for the applicants and plan to send it by the end of



          20      November.  We are continuing to review the



          21      application materials in coordination with our



          22      contracted agencies.



          23          There are no other updates at this time.



          24                        CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          25          With that, that completes our agenda for today.





                                                                      29

�







           1      So thank you, all, for your participation.  And this



           2      meeting is adjourned.



           3                               (Meeting adjourned at



           4                                1:59 p.m.)
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